User Manual HLA Fusion™ *Research*

v. R2.x.x

2010/10

For Research Use Only. Not For Use In Diagnostic Procedures.



21001 Kittridge Street, Canoga Park, CA 91303-2801 Tel: (818) 702-0042 Fax: (818) 702-6904 www.onelambda.com Advancing Transplant Diagnostics

i HLA Fusion Research User Manual v2.x. Rev 0.pdf HLA Fusion[™] *Research*, ConsenSys[™], and Micro SSP[™]are trademarks of One Lambda, Inc. Luminex[®] is a registered trademark of Luminex Corporation. Windows[®] is a registered trademark of Microsoft Corporation.

© Copyright 2010 One Lambda, Inc.

All One Lambda software products are designed to assist personnel experienced in HLA analysis by suggesting typing results. However, any clinical or diagnostic results must be carefully reviewed by a person qualified in HLA typing to assure correctness. This software may be used to aid in suggesting results, but should not be used as the sole method for determining reportable results. This software is meant as a laboratory aid, not as a source of definitive results. The software design does not mitigate hazards associated with the software. The laboratory director or technologist trained in histocompatibility testing is required to review all data to detect any problems with the software.

Table of Contents

Chanter 1	Introduction
Chapter 1	What is III A Eusion TM Desserve 2
	Program Updates I
	Limitations of the Program
	Technical Support
	Scope of This Manual
Chapter 2	Navigation
	Logging On To Fusion Research
	Retrieving a Forgotten User Name or Password
	Key System Settings
	Screen Resolution
	File Permissions
	Character Length
	User Interface
	Fusion Research Home Pages
	Accessing HLA Fusion [™] Research Software Functions
	Main Menu Options
	Exit
	Toolbar Buttons
	Find
	Print Report
	Preview Report
	Print Screen
	Magnify

	Show Navigator	20
	Patient	20
	Related Records	21
	Side By Side Analysis	22
	Product Data Analysis	23
	Sample Navigation	23
Chapter 3	ConsenSys TM Analysis	
	Starting a ConsenSys Analysis Session	25
	Starting a ConsenSys Session	25
	Adding an Ab1 File.	27
	Using the ConsenSys Analysis window	28
	Keyboard Shortcuts	28
	Sample Comments	29
	Flagging a Sample for Further Testing	30
	Accept Base Calls	30
	Edit Base Calls	30
	Saving and Confirming ConsenSys Analysis Results	30
	Save Assignments	30
	Confirm Assignments	31
Chapter 4	SSO Analysis	22
	Starting SSO Analysis	33
	Opening a SSO Analysis Session	33
	Displaying a SSO Analysis Window	38
	Configuring SSO Data Analysis	39
	Minimum Positive Control	40
	Minimum Bead Count	41
	Set Sure Reaction Bead.	41
	Using the SSO Date Analysis window	41
	A palvza SSO Data Analysis window	4Z
	Allalyze SSO Data	40
	Turing Assignments	40
	Flagging a Sample for Eurther Testing	40
	Manual Assignments	49
	SSO Batch Analysis	
	Soo Daten Anarysis	49
	Confirm Assignments	50
	Print Screen	50
Chapter 5	Micro SSP Analysis	50
chapter e	Starting Micro SSP Analysis	51
	Displaying a Micro SSP Analysis Window	55
	Configuring Micro SSP Data Analysis	55
	Change Current Configuration	56
	6 · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	

	Assign Code	6
	Bw4/Bw6 in Serology	6
	Demographic Information	7
	Entering Micro SSP Reactions Input Panel	7
	Entering Micro SSP Reactions	7
	Using the Micro SSP Analysis window	7
	Micro SSP Analysis window Overview	8
	View Well Details	8
	Add New Sample	8
	Using the Reaction Pattern Table	8
	Number of Allowable False Reactions	0
	Force One False Reaction	0
	Micro SSP Combined Analysis	0
	Making Typing Assignments in Micro SSP Analysis	1
	Allele Code Assignments	3
	Manual Allele Code Assignment	3
	Serology Assignment	3
	Other Assignment	4
	Unknown Allele Codes	4
	Remove Assignments	4
	Sample Comments	4
		5
	Flagging a Sample for Further Testing	5
	Save Assignments	5
	Confirm Assignments	5
Chapter 6	Session Summary and Logs	
	What is Session Summary? 6'	7
	Example Session Summary6	7
	Creating and Managing Session Logs	0
	Creating a Session Log	0
	Managing Session Logs	0
	Printing Session Logs	0
Chapter 7	Reports	•
	Using the Reports Window	2
	Accessing the Reports Window	2
	Select Report Type	4
	Refine Report Input	4
	Session/Sample Selection	b 7
	View, Print or Export Reports	/
	Export Report	/
	Accessing Reports from the My Favorite Menu	ð
	Customining Depart Appendix	9 0
		9

	Creating Custom Data Export Templates	80
	Creating Custom Reports	82
	Sample Summary	83
	Molecular Typing Sample Summary	84
	Antibody Screening Sample Summary	85
	View Records	86
	Patient Info	88
	Report Types	89
Chapter 8	Sample Management	
	Sample Lists	90
	Importing Sample Lists	90
	Information Formats for Sample Lists	91
	New packing list format	91
	Pack list: Old Standard 'X' samples	92
	Old packing list format, '11' for AB/DR samples	92
	Comma delimited format	92
	Tab delimited format	92
	SDF format	92
	Local/Sample/Patient ID Only	93
	Viewing and Editing Sample Information	94
	Test Lists	95
	Creating New Test Lists	95
	Viewing and Editing Existing Test Lists	96
	Deleting Existing Test Lists	96
	Exporting Test Lists	96
	Luminex Lists	. 97
	Creating Luminex Lists	97
	Create Sample Worklists	97
	Create Plate Design	98
Chapter 9	Patient Information	100
	Importing Patient/Donor Lists	100
	Managing Patient/Donor Records.	101
	Adding New Patient/Donor Records	103
	Lookup Patient/Donor Records	103
	Editing Patient/Donor Records	104
	Associating a Patient/Donor ID with Sample IDs	104
	Associating Patient and Donor Records	105
	Printing Patient/Donor Records	105
	Exporting Patient/Donor Records	105
	Arcniving Patient/Donor Records.	106
	Deleting Patient/Donor Records	106
	Creating Patient/Donor Lists	106
	Patient Antibody Tracking	107

Chapter 10	Profile Management
	User Management
	Viewing the User List
	Adding New Users
	Editing User Profiles
	Changing Passwords 114
	Resetting Passwords
	Changing User Privileges
	Inactivating Users
	Lab Profile
	Editing the Lab Profile
	Managing Lab Codes
Chapter 11	Utilities
-	Managing Catalog Reference Files
	Updating Catalog Files from a Local or Network Drive
	Updating Catalog Files from the One Lambda Download Site
	Updating Molecular Typing Reference Files
	Updating NMDP Codes from a Local or Network Drive
	Updating NMDP Files from the NMDP Web Site
	Creating a Local Code File
	Updating the Local Code File
	Updating Serology Equivalent Code File from the One Lambda Web Site 122
	Archiving Catalog Files
	Viewing Catalog File Information
	Associating Product Catalog Files and Luminex Templates
	Importing Allele Frequency Files (Demographic Frequency) 125
	Updating Allele Frequency Files (Demographic Frequency)
	Changing Product Configuration Settings
	Changing Molecular Product Configuration
	Changing Ab1 Filename Configuration
	General System Settings
	General Settings
	Choosing Default Printer Settings
	Setting HLA Fusion Research Default URLs and Directory Paths
	Activating Products
	Software Validation
	Special Characters to Avoid in Filenames
Chapter 12	LABXpress
	Managing Sample Information
	Managing Test Lists
	Creating New Test Lists
	Viewing and Editing Existing Test Lists
	Deleting Existing Test Lists 141

	Exporting Test Lists	41
	Creating Luminex Lists	41
	Creating Sample Worklists	42
	Creating a Plate Design	43
	Creating a Run Design	44
	Determining the Run Type 14	45
	Starting and Monitoring a Run 14	46
Index		47

Chapter 1 Introduction

What is HLA Fusion[™] Research?

HLA Fusion *Research* is a companion to One Lambda's ConsenSysTM, SSO, and Micro SSPTM products. This software runs in both stand-alone (on a single computer) and network environments.

The features of this software allow you to do the following:

- Import raw data
- Manually enter reaction patterns
- Analyze the raw data and review the results in graphical form
- Easily update product information (new product and lot information)
- Search for specific data and create standard or custom reports
- Compare results to One Lambda quality control (QC) data

README Files

A README file is provided. with software update This file provides a list of significant changes to the software and also critical information that is not included in the user's manual.

Program Updates

Note: For best results, always make sure you are using the latest version of HLA Fusion[™] <Emphasis>Research software.

You may obtain updates of HLA FusionTM <Emphasis>Research by request. Please contact your One Lambda, Inc. representative for a copy of the software or see the Technical Support section below for more contact information. Product information updates (catalog files, etc.) for HLA FusionTM <Emphasis>Research are available through your One Lambda Inc. representative, or from the One Lambda website:

http://download.onelambda.com

Limitations of the Program

All One Lambda software products are designed to assist personnel experienced in HLA analysis by suggesting typing results. However, results must be carefully reviewed by a person qualified in HLA typing to assure correctness. This software may be used to aid in suggesting results, but should not be used as the sole method for determining reportable results. This software is meant as a laboratory aid, not as a source of definitive results.

For the reliability of patient information stored in the database, users must ensure that the identifier for each patient is unique and that each sample identifier is unique. The storage capability of HLA Fusion[™] <Emphasis>Research is limited by Microsoft SQL Server Desktop Engine or SQL Server 2000. (The user must manually archive data.)

 $HLA\ Fusion^{TM} < Emphasis > Research\ assumes\ that\ data\ for\ each\ required\ input\ is\ in\ standard\ format\ that\ has\ not\ been\ modified.$

The HLA FusionTM <Emphasis>Research analyzes a data file in the following format.

- The data file is one of the following:
 - .ab1 file for ConsenSys
 - .csv file for SSO
 - .csv file for Micro SSP.
- The data file name (also known as a session ID) can be up to 100 characters and includes the .csv extension.
- The data is generated based on original, unmodified templates provided by One Lambda, Inc.
- The user is responsible for final assignments and must review all suggested results.

Technical Support

For technical support or to report software problems, contact your One Lambda representative. From the United States, call 800-822-8824 or from the Greater Los Angeles Area, call 818-702-0042. Contact us by e-mail at: techsupport@onelambda.com.

For system requirements, see the HLA Fusion Research Installation Guide.

Scope of This Manual

This manual provides information on how to import raw data and then to analyze it, making adjustments in cut-off values as necessary. It is very important to recognize that the QC (Quality Control) data used with this program and the defaults set in this program are based on One Lambda's experience with the product in a tightly-controlled research and development environment. Thus, a laboratory performing HLA typing in another environment may need to reset cut-off values to meet specific laboratory requirements.

From the Main Menu of HLA FusionTM <Emphasis>Research, you can access the three major components of the program:

- Analyze Data
- Manage Records
- Manage Samples

In addition, you may also access the following features:

- Patient Information
- Utilities
- Help
- Exit button

This manual helps you start using One Lambda's HLA FusionTM <Emphasis>Research. It includes an overview of the system and then quickly takes you into the process of analyzing data. See the *HLA Fusion Research Installation Guide* for installation instructions.

Chapter 2 Navigation

This chapter describes the various ways to access the HLA FusionTM *Research* software functions, as well as how to use the Navigator tool to access and move between sessions and samples.

Logging On To Fusion Research

1. Double-click the HLA Fusion *Research* icon on your computer desktop. from **Start > Programs > One Lambda > HLA Fusion Research.**



You can also open the program

5

The Security Login dialog box is displayed.

Figu	are 2-1: HLA Fusion Research Login Scr	een
	HLA Fusion [®] 2.0	
	User Name*:	
	Forgot User Name Log In Cancel	
	Database: C001951-JHA\FUSION\130QA Version: 2.0.0.28314, Created on: 4/23/2010	
	Regional Settings: Client: English (United States) DB Server: us english\SDL Latin1 General CP1 CI AS	

- 2. Enter your HLA Fusion *Research* User Name and Password.
- 3. Click Log In to open the program.

Note: The SQL Database field displays the database to which you are currently connected.

Retrieving a Forgotten User Name or Password

- If you forget your HLA Fusion *Research* user name, click the **Forgot User Name** link, enter your first and last name, and select your lab role (supervisor or technician). The system displays the user name matching the data you provide.
- If you forget your HLA Fusion *Research* password, click the **Forgot Password** link, and answer the two security questions you were asked when you set up your user profile (see *Editing User Profiles, p. 301*). The password is displayed when the questions are answered correctly.

💫 Forgot Password		- 🗆 🗙
HLA Fusion [™] 2.0	• • •	
User ID*: E Security Questions What is the last name of your best childhood friend ? What is the name of the city you were born ? *	*	
Your Password is :	Get Password	lose
AONE LAMBDA		

Figure 2-2: Forgot Password Dialog Box

Key System Settings

Screen Resolution

HLA Fusion *Research* software requires a screen resolution of **1280 x 960**. The software displays a message if your current resolution is less than the expected settings.

Figure 2-3: Screen Resolution Message

HLA Fusio	n
?	The minimum required screen resolution is 1280 X 960. HLA Fusion software will attemp to change the screen resolution to 1280 X 960. Do you wish to continue?
	Yes No

You can select **Yes** to have the system attempt to make the adjustment. It will continue to start the application even if it could not adjust the resolution. Or, you can select **No** and adjust it manually.

In addition, If your computer is running the Microsoft[®] Windows 7[®] operating system, the text display setting must be set to **Smaller** - **100% (default)**. Take these steps if you need to adjust the screen text display size:

- 1. Right-click on the computer desktop.
- 2. Select the Display option. The Screen Resolution window displays.

Figure 2-4: Windows 7 Screen Resolution Window



3. Select the Make text and other items larger or smaller (see Figure 2-5).

Figure 2-5: Text Size Options

	😋 🖉 🖷 🔹 Control Panel	All Control Panel Rems Display. If y Search Control Panel
Select this setting—	Control Panel Home Adjust resolution Calibrate color Change display settings Adjust Clampe display settings Set custom text size (DPI)	Make it easier to read what's on your screen You can change the size of text and other items on your screen by choosing one of these options. To temporarily entryption part of the screen, use the <u>Magnifer</u> tool. Synalier - 100% (default) Preview Machine - 125% Larger - 150% <u>Apply</u>
	Sex also Personalization Devices and Printers	

File Permissions

All HLA Fusion *Research* users must have read and write permissions to the following directories and files:

- OneLambda.Fusion.Interface.exe.config
- ReportMap.xml
- C:\OLI Fusion\ and all the sub directories and the files in these directories

Character Length

If you are using SQL Server 2000 and encounter a report or results that require more than 8000 characters of data, you must update to SQL Server 2005.

User Interface

Fusion Research Home Pages



This user interface option allows you access to the product home pages, data import and analysis windows. It also allows you to view or access system or product data, reference file downloads and configuration settings.

Note: If the current page does not show updated information upon modification or downloads, go back to the main Home page, and then return to the product home page to see the changes.

This interface is the default when you first log in to HLA Fusion *Research*. To display the home page for one of the products listed in the bottom left area of the page, click the appropriate button, as in this example for SSO:

- From the main home page, click the ConsenSys home page button 550
- Click the ConsenSys button 🔤 from the HLA Fusion *Research* toolbar.
- Select Analyze Data > LABScreen.
- Note: Migrated and upgraded databases also use this same interface (Figure 2-6, *Fusion Research Default Home Page*, p. 9).

Launching Navigator

- 1. If the Navigator tab is not already displayed on the right of the application window, click the **Show Navigator** toolbar button **eq** to activate the Navigator function. Otherwise, see step 2.
- 2. Move your cursor over the **Navigator** tab on the right border of the application window to slide the Navigator into view.





3. To close the Navigator, click the close button **X**.

Navigator Tree

Using the Navigator tree, you can easily move between analysis sessions and samples.

1. Double click on a session, or click the + sign to the left of the catalog, date or product module to display the list of sessions.

Figure 2-8: List of Products



2. Click a sample name to display it an the analysis window.





Results Grouping

The sessions and samples displayed though the Navigator tool can be sorted by various criteria:

- Product type
- Session Date
- Catalog (Session Name)

The default is to group by Product. See the next few sections for details about these two display options.

Group by Product

The Navigator displays imported sessions for each product type, based on the date range and other criteria set in the **Find** option. If you are already in the analysis mode for a certain product, just the sessions that fit the **Find** criteria for that product display. Click the + sign next to the product type you are interested in to display its sessions.





- The sessions displayed in blue are the ones that have not yet been reviewed. Once you review a session, its color on the Navigator list changes to black.
- Click a session name to display the samples within this session and a session summary. For LABType and LABScreen, the system also performs a batch analysis and displays the results in the session summary.
- If a session sample is listed in red, this means the sample failed in batch analysis.
- Click a sample name to display it in an analysis window.

Group by Session Date

When you select the Date option, sessions are displayed in order of their creation dates.



Figure 2-11: Navigator Sorted by Session Date

• Otherwise, the use of this tool is the same as described above in Group by Product.

Group by Catalog

When you select the Catalog option, sessions are displayed in alphanumeric order by catalog name.



Figure 2-12: Navigator Sorted by Catalog

• Otherwise, the use of this tool is the same as described above in Group by Product.

Accessing HLA Fusion[™] Research Software Functions

Main Menu Options



You can access HLA Fusion *Research* functionality at any time from the main menu, which is displayed at the top of all HLA Fusion *Research* application windows. See the following sections for a list of the options available under each main menu item.

Analyze Data

Each option under this menu item is either a molecular or antibody product for which you can import CSV files, or manually enter reactions, and analyze data. For details, see the individual product analysis chapters in this user manual.

Figure 2-14: Analyze Data Menu Options

	Micro SSP	
	ConsenSys	
	550	
-		

Reports

When you select this menu item, the Reports page is displayed, allowing you to create reports of your analysis data. See Chapter 10, *Reports, p. 250* for information on how to use the Reports window.

Data

When you select this menu item, a Data window is displayed that allows you to manage (delete, archive, activate and move) sessions and samples, map session alleles to the new NMDP nomenclature, and view/print log files of session data.

Sample

Options under this menu item pertain to importing, creating, managing, and exporting sample information. This is also the menu to use for managing Luminex test lists (see Chapter 12, *Sample Management, p. 275* for details) and for creating sample work lists and plate designs.

Figure 2-15: Sample Menu Options



Patient Info

Options under this menu item pertain to importing patient/donor lists, managing individual patient/donor information, and tracking patient antibody data. See Chapter 13, *Patient Information, p. 286* for details.

Figure 2-16: Patient Info Menu Options

Import Patient List
Manage Patient
Ab Tracking

Profile

There are options under this menu item for creating and managing your own user profile, lists of system users and privileges, and lab information. There is also an option for switching between the home page

options, depending on your system navigation preference. See Chapter 14, *Profile Management, p. 299* for details.

Figure 2-17: Profile Menu Options



Utilities

The options under this menu item pertain to importing catalog, code and serology files, configuring the molecular and antibody products you analyze, setting up your HLA Fusion *Research* system, and system validation. See Chapter 15, *Utilities, p. 305* for details.

Figure 2-18: Utilities Menu Options

Update Reference	۲
Catalog Template Association	
Molecular Product Configuration	Þ
Antibody Product Configuration	۲
Printer Setup	
URLs & Paths	
Products Selection	
Validation	Þ

Help

This menu item allows you to access the following HLA Fusion *Research* Software information:

- Online help, which provides guidance in using HLA Fusion *Research* Software.
- Notification of updates and a description of new features in the latest HLA Fusion *Research* software.
- Dynamically updated Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) about the HLA Fusion *Research* software.
- The build and version number of the HLA Fusion *Research* Software application you are currently using.
- Note: The online help can be accessed from anywhere within the HLA Fusion Research application when you press the F1 key.

Occasionally, updates are made to the online help between releases of the HLA Fusion Research. To ensure you have the most current help file, you can either check the OLI download site, download.onelambda.com -

/pub/tray_info/Windows/HLA_Fusion_Catalogs/Document/, or you can enable the autodownload feature from the Fusion Research default home page (see Fusion Research Home Pages, p. 9).

Figure 2-19: Help Menu Options

HLA Fusion™ Help	F1
Product Update Note	s
FAQs	
About HLA Fusion™	

Exit

When you select this menu item, a dialog box displays that allows you either to select **Yes** to exit and close the HLA Fusion *Research* application, or to select **No** to keep the current session open.

Toolbar Buttons

HLA Fusion *Research* provides a toolbar, displayed just below the main menu options, with access to commonly used functions.

Figure 2-20: HLA Fusion Research Toolbar

Main Menu	Analyze Data Reports LABXpress Data Sample Patient Info Profile Utilities Help Exit	
Toolbar —	🏠 🛔 📮 👰 🚇 🔍 🟥 📲 🦀 🚜 🦛 📟 💽 🤴 🐝 💭 💷 📾 🍃 < <summary test4<="" th="" 🛛=""><th></th></summary>	

The following table names each toolbar button. The sections below describes the function of each button.

Button	Name
	Home
ß	Find
4	Print Report
Ø	Preview Report
	Print Screen
Q	Magnify
	Show Navigator

Button	Name
<u>A</u>	Patient
	Related Records
	Side-by-Side Analysis
🚥 M 🖁	Product Data Analysis
< <summary 2<="" td=""><td>Sample Navigation Tools (only visible during sample analysis). The <<summary link<br="">returns to the associated sample summary table.</summary></td></summary>	Sample Navigation Tools (only visible during sample analysis). The < <summary link<br="">returns to the associated sample summary table.</summary>

Find

Click the **Find** button to display a dialog box that allows you to search for records using various criteria. You can choose to search by Patient ID, Sample ID, Session ID, or Other. **Other** allows you to provide multiple search criteria: date range, session status, and catalog type.

The Find dialog box also allows you to modify the Navigator session sort and display criteria.

Note: The date range set here, in the Session Date field, is used as the default date range throughout the software, such as in the Navigator and Reports windows. Each time you change it, and click Find, the default changes for the rest of the application.

	»search HLA Fusion™ 2.0		
	C By Patient ID C By Sample ID C By Session ID C Other	Sort Navigator : Sessions Session Date/Time DESC Tray Status Session Name	Navigator session
Date Range —	Session Date 7/29/2009 V ~ 5/10/2010 V Session Status: * Catalog Type : ConsenSys MicroSSP SSO Find Save Reset Close	Display Fields for Navigator	Navigator session name display options—selected fields display in the Navigator in the same order they appear in the listing to the
			leit

Figure 2-21: Find Records and Navigator Settings

Print Report

From any analysis window, you can click the **Print Report** button to display a list of the reports that you can print; reports listed are specific to the product you are currently analyzing. If you have set a default printer for your system (configured through **Utilities** > **Printer Setup**), the selected report is automatically sent to the specified printer. Otherwise, a dialog box is displayed from which you can select a printer. For more information on reports, see Chapter 10, *Reports, p. 250*.





Preview Report

From any analysis window, click the **Preview Report** *b* button to display a list of reports you can preview—reports listed are specific to the product you are currently analyzing. Selected reports display in a preview window. Use the print and export buttons in the preview window to output the report in selected format. Click the close button **x** to close the preview window.



Print Screen

From any analysis windows, click the **Print Screen** window to display a new window containing the screen shot of the current analysis window. Click the **Print** button to send the screen shot to the printer. To close this window, click the close button **X**.





Magnify

From any analysis window, click the **Magnify** we button to activate the magnifying glass and enlarge any section of the window. Use the arrow keys on your computer keyboard to increase or decrease the height and width of the magnified area. Click anywhere on the screen to deactivate the magnifying glass.

			+		1D	2E	3C	38
1	1	1		Cross Loci				
				Sample Rxn	X	x	х	X
-				4104040404			5	
8	\cap			A*010	103			
1				A*010	104			
				A*01	02			
				A*01	03		J	
				A*0107				
				A*0108				

Show Navigator

Click the **Show Navigator** button if the **Navigator** tab (normally displayed on the upper right side of the application window) is not visible. Once the **Navigator** tab is displayed, you can move your cursor over it to slide the Navigator panel open.



See *Launching Navigator*, p. 10 for more information about using the **Navigator**.

Patient

From any analysis window, click the **Patient** button to display the Patient/Donor Info window where you can enter or edit information related to a patient and associate it with the current sample (see *Managing Patient/Donor Records, p. 287*).

Search Enter	new patient/donor information or searc	ch patient/donor to ea	dit	
Enforce ISB1 format for Patient	/Donor ID I Archived			
Patient/Donor Into		1	Family ID	
First Name *	Ludu	_	Middle Name	
		_	Birthdate	(Select Date)
Last Name "		_	Candar	
SSN		7	Gender Catagory Group	
Ethnicity]	categoly aloup	• Human C Animal
Address			Region	
			Postal Code	
City			Phone	
State/Province		1	Mobile	
Country		-	Work	
Email Address		-	Fax	
Employer			Diagnosis	
Donor Center ID			Blood Type	Bh 🔽
Division		1	Patient/Donor	Patient
Hospital Name		-		
Spouse Info				
Spouse Name		Blood Type	•	
Emergency Contact		Phone		

Figure 2-25: Patient/Donor Information Window

Related Records

A related record is a sample that is associated in some way with the current sample or patient. From any analysis window, click the **Related Records** button to load all records related to the current sample into the drop-down list in the Sample ID field. Use the sample navigation arrows to display the analysis of each related record one by one. To exit from the related records mode, click the **<Summary** link next to the Sample ID field.

Note: This function can be accessed also by right-clicking a sample in the Navigator. See the productspecific chapters of this manual for more information about using this feature.

Side By Side Analysis

From any analysis window, click the **Side By Side Analysis** with previous analysis sessions for the same sample ID.

Combined A	nalysis							
Current Sam Patient ID :	ple ID : Test2							
Combine	e Sample ID	Session Name	Catalog ID	Well Position	Locus	Analysis Date	Nomenclati Date	re
	Test2	Micro SSP_20090908144026	SSP1-01_001_08	2	A	9/8/2009 2:41:00	January 200	9
ote : For Combin	ed Analysis the sample	e must be saved.				A	nalyze	Cancel

Figure 2-26: Sample List for Side By Side Analysis

- Select a previous sample analysis from the displayed list to compare to the current one. The two analysis windows are then displayed in a comparison window.
- Each window can be resized and moved by dragging and dropping. Click again on the **Side By Side Analysis** button to cancel the comparison display.



Figure 2-27: Example of a Side By Side Analysis Window

Note: This function can be accessed also by right-clicking a sample in the Navigator.

Product Data Analysis

Click any of the **Product Data Analysis** buttons **Im** I to display the product home page, import a session file, manually enter a session, or select from the Navigator list of already imported sessions for that product.

Sample Navigation

The **Sample Navigation** tools (only accessible from the analysis windows) give you access to all the samples in the current session. You can select a different sample within the same session either by selecting from the drop down list in the Sample ID field, or by clicking the forward/back arrow buttons next to the drop- down field. You can also click **<<Summary** to go to the summary for that session.





- Clicking on the drop-down arrow displays the samples within the current session.
- Selecting a sample from this list in the Sample ID field makes the selected sample active in the analysis window. Alternatively, you can use the forward/back arrow buttons to select different samples.
- Clicking <<**Summary** takes you to the session summary for the current sample.

Chapter 3 ConsenSys[™] Analysis

HLA FusionTM <Emphasis>Research ConsenSys analysis uses sequence based typing techniques to analyze sequence data and to determine an HLA typing. To correctly input Ab1 files for analysis, they must be in the expected file name format entered in the Ab1 Filename Configuration Menu (see *Changing Ab1 Filename Configuration*, *p.* 87).

Starting a ConsenSys Analysis Session

To begin a ConsenSys analysis session, build a session using Sample IDs or Ab1 files. This information can also be saved as a Plate Record for later use. You can also analyze Ab1 files directly.

HLA FusionTM <Emphasis>Research analysis uses sequence-based typing techniques to analyze sequence data and determine an HLA typing. Base mismatches or close base calls are flagged by the software and must be resolved by the user.

From the Analysis window you can

- View HLA Fusion[™] <Emphasis>Research results
- Add sample comments
- Flag a sample for more testing
- Accept or edit base calls

Starting a ConsenSys Session

1. Click the ConsenSys home page button 🖾 consenSys or toolbar button 🐼 to open the ConsenSys home page.

Analyze Data Reports Data	Sample Pat	ient Info Pi	rofile Ut	ilities Help	Exit								
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	•1 🔺 🚽		M 550	1 16 🛴 🛙	11 III 💝								
ConsenSys	HL	A Fu	sio	n _™ 2.	0				\circ				
Manual Entry	ConsenS	Sys Product	ts and R	leference F	iles								
			Last Upda	ate Date: 54	4/2010						[Down	load]	
		Act	ive refere	nce files: 1	5						Updates availab	le: 0	
	Conser	nSys Con	figurat	ion								_	
	ALL CL		_								1	Edit]	
	Samp	Name Forma le Locus	Prime	er Well C	ther								
	Locus N	ame Format:											
	A	В	Cw	DRB1	DRB345 KIP	DPB	1 DPA1	DQB1 DQ.	A1 MICA	MICB			
	A	В	Cw	DRB1	DRB34 KIR	DPB [.]	I DPA1	DQB1 DQ/	1 MICA	MICB			
	L												
	Conser	nSys Pro	duct D	etail -			IL IOT V		D 1	10.		_	
	Locus				lature Date		IMGIVe	rsion	Downlo: 5/4/2010 4	ad Date			
	B			JULY 2009			2.20		5/4/2010 4	-39 PM			
	Cw			JULY 2009			2.26		5/4/2010 4	:39 PM			
	DPA1			JULY 2009			2.26		5/4/2010 4	39 PM			
	DPB1			JULY 2009			2.26		5/4/2010 4	:39 PM			
	DQA1			JULY 2009			2.26		5/4/2010 4	:39 PM			
	DQB1			JULY 2009			2.26		5/4/2010 4	39 PM			
	DRB1			JULY 2009			2.26		5/4/2010 4	:39 PM			
	A			JULY 2009			2.26		5/4/2010 4	:39 PM			
	В			JULY 2009			2.26		5/4/2010 4	:39 PM			
	Cw			JULY 2009			2.26		5/4/2010 4	:39 PM			
	DPA1			JULY 2009			2.26		5/4/2010 4	:39 PM			
	DPB1			JULY 2009			2.26		5/4/2010 4	:39 PM			
	DORI			JULY 2009			2.26		5/4/2010 4	-39 PM			
	DEP1			JULT 2003			2.20		5/4/2010 4	-20 DM			
				3011 2003			2.20		3/4/2010 4	.33 F M			
A Home													
U Home													
SSP Micro SSP													
550 550													
ConsenSys													
*	100	NE LA	MBI	DA 💿									

Figure 3-1: ConsenSys Home Page

2. Click **Manual Entry**. When the dialog box for starting a ConsenSys session manually displays, you will notice that the system has assigned a session name. Optionally, you can rename the session.

Figure 3-2: ConsenSys Manual Entry Dialog Box

Enter name of analysis session*:	Create New Session/Tray
ConsenSys_20100504160930	Analyze Ab1 Files
Test Date: 5/ 4/2010	Cancel

3. Accept the current date or select a different test date and click Next >.

4. Click **Create New Session/Tray**. A window is displayed to allow for subsequent session/tray information.

Cop: 36 Container Nome 3100 Container Nome 310	Type: 36 Vet App Type: Ringular write: Operator. Analynis Protocol	
		Robush Stat Analasia France

Figure 3-3: Session/Tray Information Window

- 5. Enter all required information in the fields at the top of the window. (To add an Ab1 file(s), see *Adding an Ab1 File*, p. 27.)
- 6. Click **Start Analysis**. The ConsenSys analysis window is displayed.

Adding an Ab1 File

- 1. From the Session/Tray information window, click the Add Ab1 File button at the bottom. The file import window is displayed.
- 2. Browse to the folder on your computer containing the Ab1 data file(s) you want, select the file, and click **Open**. The imported Ab1 data file(s) will be displayed on the right side of the Analysis window.

Note: You can select and import more than one file at a time by using the **CTRL** key.

3. Click the Start Analysis button to analyze the Ab1 files.

Using the ConsenSys Analysis window

The Reference Sequence displays a magenta highlight around bases that differ between the reference and consensus sequences. These bases need to be individually viewed and accepted or edited. Blue highlights between the reference and consensus sequences indicate the location of manually edited bases. The Consensus Sequence is the combined consensus between both the forward and reverse primers. It displays any manually edited bases. A green highlight on a base in the Consensus Sequence indicates an accepted base. To resize the electropherogram, hold down the Shift Key and use the arrow keys to change the size. Right click an electropherogram for more options.

A C G T C I < << >> > I Allel AP630 I IMST/HLA B Z 27 I MORE	Filter Reanalyze Accept Save >> Tests Comments Base Quick Report Close	
1 2	3 7	5 6 7
Allele Pairs		
Filter List (Not Applied)	SRGCMSTGGCCCYGACCGAGACCTGGGCBGGCTCCCACTYYATGASGYATTTCB	CACCRCYRTGTCCYGGCCYGKCCGCGGRGAGC <mark>Y</mark> CSSCTT <mark>CATYNCN</mark> RYG <mark>S</mark> GCTA
Allele 1 Allele 2 Mis		HCCCTCCGTGTCCCGGCCCGGCCGCGGGGAGCCCCGCTTMTCTCA-GTGGGCTA
B*070201 B*070201 10	(TCCCTCCGTGTCCCGGCCCGGCCGCGGGGAGCCCCGCTTMTCTCA-GTGGGCTA(
B*070201 B*070202 10	AP630 B 2 F >>	
B*070201 B*0704 10	A: 873 C: 2003	
B*070201 B*070501 10	G: 1888 T: 1832	
B*070201 B*070503 10		

Keyboard Shortcuts

The computer keyboard sequences listed below allow you to navigate and manipulate the ConSensys analysis window.

Key	Shift	CTRL	Description
\leftarrow	×	×	Go to sequence start position
\leftarrow	×		Reduce trace width (when not in fixed width view)
\leftarrow		×	Go to previous marked position
\leftarrow			Go to previous position
\rightarrow	×	×	Go to sequence end position
\rightarrow	×		Increase trace width (when not in fixed width view)
\rightarrow		×	Go to next marked position
\rightarrow			Go to next position
\uparrow	×	×	Zoom in on low level signal
\uparrow	×		Decrease the height of the trace window
\uparrow		×	Reduce the trace scale
\uparrow			Go to previous sample
\downarrow	×	×	Zoom out to show high intensity signal
\downarrow	×		Increase the height of the trace window
\downarrow		×	Increase the trace scale
\downarrow			Go to next sample
Key	Shift	CTRL	Description
-----	-------	------	--
TAB			Confirm the current IUB code call and move to the next unconfirmed position
А			Set the current IUB code to A
A	×		Show/hide the A trace
А		×	Toggle the amino acid translation view
С			Set the current IUB code to C
С	×		Show/hide the C trace
G			Set the current IUB code to G
G	×		Show/hide the G trace
Т			Set the current IUB code to G
Т	×		Show/hide the T trace
В			Set the current IUB code to B
D			Set the current IUB code to D
Н			Set the current IUB code to H
К			Set the current IUB code to K
М			Set the current IUB code to M
R			Set the current IUB code to R
S			Set the current IUB code to S
V			Set the current IUB code to V
W			Set the current IUB code to W
Х			Set the current IUB code to X
Y			Set the current IUB code to Y
+			Add an insertion marker at the current position
-			Add a deletion marker at the current position
F			Open the sequence find dialog
I			Show/hide trace information
[Step back through the sequence primer layers

Sample Comments

If you choose to enter comments about the sample, they are displayed for the results in the current analysis session in all analysis, data look up and reporting functions in HLA FusionTM <Emphasis>Research.

- 1. From the Analysis window, click Comments.
- 2. Enter comments about the sample into the **Comments and Warnings** window, and click **Done**.

29

Flagging a Sample for Further Testing

Marking a sample for more testing displays the More Tests check box for the sample's results in the current analysis session in all analysis, data look up and reporting functions in HLA FusionTM <Emphasis>Research.

• From the Analysis window, select the More Tests check box.

Accept Base Calls

You can individually accept the close base calls determined by HLA FusionTM <Emphasis>Research. When you accept a base call, you are moved to the next marked base position.

• From the **Analysis** window, click **Accept Base** to accept the computer-suggested base call and move to the next base.

Edit Base Calls

The base assignment button is highlighted for the currently selected base. More than one base can be selected at a time and the corresponding base code is displayed. If no bases are highlighted, an asterisk (*) is displayed in the consensus sequence. Any base call can be edited.

• From the **Analysis** window, click on a base and click one or more of the assignment buttons to change the base assignment.



Assignment Buttons

Saving and Confirming ConsenSys Analysis Results

HLA FusionTM <Emphasis>Research software provides computer suggested typing results. Final assignments can only be made by the user.

From the **Analysis** window you can:

- Save results
- Confirm results

Save Assignments

Lab technicians and supervisors can save analysis results for further review and approval. Samples are marked as *Ready*.

• From the Analysis window, click **Save>>** to save analysis results.

Confirm Assignments

Lab Supervisors can review and confirm analysis results. Samples are marked as Approved.

• From the Analysis window, click **Confirm**>> to confirm analysis results.

31

Chapter 4 SSO Analysis

The SSO Genotyping analysis feature of the program analyzes three Luminex .csv output files as a new session and can continue the analysis of a previously unfinished session.

Starting SSO Analysis

SSO analysis results are based on catalog specifications that are provided with the software. You can analyze samples one at a time to view, adjust, and assign results for each one.

Opening a SSO Analysis Session

- 1. Select **SSO** home page button 550 or the SSO toolbar button 550. The SSO Home page is displayed.
- Note: For information on the options available through the links on the right of the window (Figure 4-1), see Chapter 11, *Utilities*.

Analyze Data Reports Data Sample Patient II	nto Profile Utilities Help	i Exit					
☆ 🙈 ඵ 🖉 🚇 🔍 ⁼¶ 🛆 🖉 ∢	* 111 🖬 111 116 🕵	un un 🐎		Click to ope	en Catalog 🔛	Click to	open Update
SSO	HLA Fu	sion [∞] 2.0		Manager wi	ndow	Referer	nce File window
	SSO Product and	d Catalogs					
Include Imported		Last Update Date: 8/13/2009			[Details] [Down		to open Available
c:\OLI Fusion\data\session	-	Active Catalogs: 3			<u>Updates availa</u>		
CSV File Name	SSO Configuration	on				Rete	rence Update window
		Minimum Positive Control: 1000					Edit to
		Minimum Bead Count: 100				mod	
	Minimum	Bead Failure Threshold (%): 10				niou	
	Popup message for lo	w bead count/low positive: No				giop	arsettings
	Catalog	Catalog Description	Worksheet	Worksheet (11x17)	Probe/Primer		ick links to
	RSSOKIR 002 03		RSSOKIR 002 WS				spidy sciected
	RSSOKIR 003 03		RSSOKIR 003 WS			– <u>–</u> Ca	italog,
	RSSOKIR 004 01		RSSOKIR 004 WS		-	W W	orksheet, or
						pr	obe/primer
						do	ocuments
1 Home							
SSP Micro SSP							
\$\$0 550							
ConsenSys							
». •		MBDA					

Figure 4-1: SSO Home Page

- Note: Open worksheets and probe/primer sheets to verify the accuracy of revision numbers (these documents do not contain a revision number in their filename).
- 2. Select a session from the CSV File Name list. The **SSO Session Import** window displays.



Figure 4-2: SSO Session Import Window

- Note: HLA Fusion Research converts Luminex-generated CSV file data, such as date and time, to the local regional code if a regional code is specified in the CSV file. (A regional code cannot be specified for CSV files created with Luminex software version 2.2 or earlier.) If the first date field is highlighted yellow, it indicates a regional code mismatch. In this case, it is recommended that you use the drop-down selector in the second date field to choose the appropriate date, taking into consideration regional date format differences.
- 3. Select a file from the list of CSV files to import, or click the folder icon above the list to browse to LABType CSV file(s) on your system/network. If samples in a session have a positive control value below the minimum setting, they are flagged so you can easily select and delete them from the session.
- 4. The system assigns a session ID (the CSV filename) automatically. Optionally, you can change the ID. The ID can be alphanumeric (contain letters and numbers), and will be listed alphabetically with any other SSO session files in your database.

Figure 4-3: Session ID Field

Session ID : C111269LS1A04Lot1_ID330

- Note: A session ID must be unique to the Fusion Research database. If the session ID already exists, the software prompts you to rename the session. It is also highly recommended that you do not use any special characters in this field since they may serve a specific purpose as field separators (see *Special Characters to Avoid in Filenames, p. 339*).
- 5. If a sample is already associated with a patient, the patient ID and any existing, related patient information is displayed. To add patient information, do one of the following:
 - To add data from the system, double-click in the Patient ID column of the Sample/Patient Details table or click the **Patient List** button on the toolbar. The **Import Patient** window is displayed, allowing you to import the patient information file. See *Importing Patient/Donor Lists*, p. 100 for details.
 - To manually add patient data, type data into the patient-related fields of the table.
 - You can assign the sample ID to empty patient ID fields by selecting the check box for *Set empty patient ID to Sample*.
- 6. Select a catalog file. Your catalog file selection method varies, depending on the CSV file and the catalog files you have imported for LABType:
- Note: If you need to import more catalogs, click the **Download** link on the LABtype home page and see Chapter 11, *Utilities*, p. 117 for instructions on how to add new catalog files to the database.

The catalog drop-down list may not be immediately updated if you downloaded the catalogs during this import session. You may need to click the **Home** button and then click the **LABType** button again to return to the import process.

- If the CSV file specifies a template name (only applies to CSV files from Luminex 2.2 and later), and one of the available catalog files is associated with that template, then that catalog file is automatically selected. You can go to Step 8.
- Note: You can also select a different catalog file from the one the system has selected by using the drop-down list in the **Catalog ID** field and selecting any catalog file listed.
 - If there is no template match, the system then considers the closest bead match between the session and all available catalog files. If only one catalog file is a close match, it is automatically selected, and you can go to Step 8. If there is more than one match, a catalog validation dialog box is displayed with the best bead matches. You can confirm the selected catalog file by clicking the **Close** button. Or, you can double-click a catalog file name on the list of **Suggested Catalogs**.

	Figure 4-4: Catalog	Validation Dialog Box
	💫 Catalog Validation	
	HLA Fusion 2.0	
Displays list of all catalog files with the same or— better level of bead matches.	Selected Catalog RSSOKIR_002_03 Validation Results: Bead mismatch exists Suggested Catalogs(Double click to select and continue) Catalog ID Nomenclature RSSOKIR_002_03 Jan 08 RSSOKIR_003_03 January 2009	Close Detail Click to display a list of any bead mismatches between selected catalog and CSV files. HLA Fusion 2.0 The following lange back are not load in Senior The following lange back are not load in Senior The following lange back are not load in Senior The following lange back are not load in Senior Detail as the data for the senior of the data for the senior and the senior senior of the data for the senior Detail as the data for the senior of the data for the senior Detail as the data for the senior of the data for the senior Detail as the data for the senior of the data for the senior Detail as the data for the senior of the data for the senior Detail as the data for the senior of the data for the senior Detail as the data for the senior of the data for the senior Detail as the data for the senior of the data for the senior Detail as the data for the senior of the data for the senior Detail as the data for the senior of the data for the senior Detail as the data for the senior of the data for the

• Following catalog file validation, the system may ask you if you would like to associate that template name with the specified catalog file (see Figure 4-5). If you click **Yes** to associate the two, the system automatically selects this catalog file for future imports of any CSV files that reference this template.



	Catalog Template Association
Select check box if you do not want to be asked this question during future imports; to display again, select Utilities > Catalog Template and select the check box next to Enable during CSV Import	HLA Fusion Do you want to associate the following template name and catalog? Template: RSS01B_009 Catalog: RSS01B_012 Do not show this form any more. Yes No
den nig oor importi	none lambda, inc.

- 7. Check to see if there are any samples that have been flagged as having a low positive control (PC); the rows of low PC samples are highlighted gray. Take the following steps if you want to delete any of these samples:
 - Click in the border to the left of the Well position column to highlight the entire row for the sample (see Figure 4-6).

		Well	Sample	Sample Date	PC Values	Exist In DB	Patient ID	First Name	Last Name	Ethnicity	Patient/ Donor
		E4	G0290	-	2790	Y				•	•
		F4	G0114	-	2701	Y				•	•
		G4	G0242	-	3259	Y				•	•
		H4	G0246	•	2715	Y				•	•
		A5	C4916	•	2619	Y				•	•
		B5	G0223	•	2782	Y				-	-
		C5	G0222	•	2187	Y				-	-
		D5	G0141	+	2606	Y				-	-
		E5	G0133	-	2422	Y				-	-
		F5	C4905	•	1319	Y				-	-
		G5	C4726	•	3253	Y				-	-
		H5	C5021	-	3173	Y				-	-
		B6	C5016	-	3181	Y				-	-
		C6	G0067	•	2634	Y				-	-
Click here		D6	G0069	-	730	Y				_	-
	h	E6	G0082	-	2904	Y				-	•
		F6	G0083	-	2928	Y				-	-
		G6	G0087	-	3202	Y				-	•

Figure 4-6: Highlight Sample Row for Deletion

- Press the **Delete** key on your computer keyboard to delete the sample and prevent it from being imported as part of the session.
- 8. When session and sample information has been verified, click the **Import** button. The newly imported session is displayed in the **Navigator** tree, in blue at the top of the list. If you select the **Auto Analysis** check box, the session is imported as well as analyzed when you click **Import**; it is displayed on the Navigator as an analyzed session.
- 9. You can continue importing Luminex session files, or you can click a session on the Navigator to start a batch analysis.
- Note: Once a CSV file has been imported, it no longer displays on the Luminex session import list unless you select the **Include Imported CSV** check box.

Displaying a SSO Analysis Window

- 1. Open a SSO session.
- 2. Click on a sample to display its analysis in the **Analysis** window. See *Analyze SSO Data*, p. 48 for more information.



- Select a sample from this list to make the sample active in the **Analysis** window. Alternatively, you can use the arrow buttons to move between the samples.
- Click any column header among the sample list to sort the table by that column. Click the arrow buttons to display the samples per the sorting criteria.

Histograms

Double click on a sample histogram in quadrant 2 to make that sample active. The color of the selected sample histogram in quadrant 2 will change to red and the selected sample profile will be displayed in quadrant 3.

Configuring SSO Data Analysis

The **Configuration** tool allows you to define certain parameters for the analysis. To launch this tool, right-click on the gray panel below the toolbar.



The Configuration window is displayed, as shown below.



Minimum Positive Control

Minimum Positive Control	•	1000	
Mimnimum Bead Count	•		
Set Sure Reaction Bead		· 🖧 🖬	1003

The default Minimum Positive Control value assigned by the system is 1000. If desired, you can enter a new value into the Minimum Positive Control Value field. If the positive control bead count for a sample is lower than the entered value, a warning is displayed.

In Sample analysis, each sample is processed individually. Results can be viewed and adjusted and final typing assignments made. Using batch analysis, all samples are processed at once and no assignments or changes can be made during analysis. You can continue the session to make adjustments and assignments.

Minimum Bead Count

Minimum Positive Control	•	
Mimnimum Bead Count	•	100
Set Sure Reaction Bead		

The default Minimum Bead Count value assigned by the system is 100. If desired, you can enter a new value in the Minimum Bead Count Value field. A warning is displayed if the count for any bead in a test falls below the Minimum Bead Count threshold.

Set Sure Reaction Bead

Selecting the **Set Sure Reaction Bead** option in the configuration menu displays a new window, as shown below. In this window, you can force positive or negative bead ID values by typing in the box.

Force Sure Reaction	
Forced Positive Bead ID (eg. 001,002,005 etc)	
Forced Negative Bead ID(eg. 001,002,005 etc)	
	OK Cancel

SSO Analysis window Overview

From the Analysis window you can:

- View sample analysis results
- Change histogram scaling
- Add comments and mark for more testing
- Print analysis information

For each sample in the current session, you can view the test data, adjust the cut-off and assign a typing. HLA FusionTM *Research* analyzes a sample when you move to view that sample. Any unviewed samples do not have analysis results when the session is saved. To analyze an entire session, all samples in the session must be viewed and typings assigned by the user.

Using the SSO Data Analysis window

The **Sample Analysis Screen** provides detailed analysis information for each sample in the session. You can review the typing assignments suggested by the program and to modify and accept the assignments. HLA FusionTM *Research* suggests possible typing results, but the final assignment is made by the user. Cut-off adjustments made in the Analysis window are sample-specific and affect only individual samples.

SSO Analysis window - Quadrant 1

QC Tab

Quadrant 1 displays the QC data histogram for the currently selected bead in the QC tab. Each bar represents a QC sample and its height represents the normalized reaction value for the selected bead in that sample.



Hover your cursor over any sample to display the sample details, as shown below.



To change the histogram scale, click inside the Max Scale field, type in new limits, and press Enter. This changes the maximum scale for the histograms in quadrants 1 and 2. You can change the scale back to a new value the same way.

Reaction Patterns Tab

1. From the Analysis window Quadrant 1, click on the **Rxn** tab to display the Reaction Pattern Table.

	QC	Rxn												Expand Tabl	е
		[Find	Allele							Rx	n Rese	et		
			28	40	8	9	11	13	14	16	21	23		Sort by Bead	JID
			031	049	009	010	014	016	017	019	024	026			
		Sample Rxn	х	х	х	х	х	х	х	х	х	х			
	•	KIR2DL3*001	х	х											
		KIR2DL3*002	х	х											
Sort by Allele -		KIR 3*003	х	х											
		KIR2DL3*004	х	х											
		KIR2DL3*005	х	х											
Sort by Reaction Pattern -		KIR2DL3*006	х	х											
		KIR2DL3*007	х	х											
		KIR2DL4*00101						х							
		KIR2DL4*0010301						х							
		KIR2DL4*0010302						х							
		KIR2DL4*00104						х							
		KIR2DL4*00201						х							
		KIR2DL4*00202						x					1		
														J	

- 2. Use the **Find Allele** tool to display the reaction pattern in the first row of the table. Type an allele into the text box and click on the **Find Allele** button to **sort by allele**.
- 3. To **sort beads by reactivity for the allele**, click on the gray area on the left of the allele name. The positive reactions would be moved to the left of the table. Click on the **Rxn Reset** button to reset the table to original configuration.
- 4. Double-click on the blue panel between the **Find Allele** and **Rxn Reset** buttons and the reaction table will be expanded. To bring the table back to its original size, double-click on the same position again.
- 5. Click on any column header to sort the table by well position.

Positive reactions are listed above the blue line, and negative reactions below.

SSO Analysis window - Quadrant 2

Bead Profile

The Bead profile tab displays the histogram for the currently selected bead. Each bar represents a sample and its height represents the normalized reaction value for the selected bead in that sample. The red bar represents the currently selected sample.

1. Click the arrow buttons to navigate between beads and display the profile of the selected bead in Quadrant 2. Alternatively, you can select the bead from under the **Bead** drop-down choices.



2. Hover your cursor over any sample. The sample details are displayed, as shown below.



- 3. If you wish to exclude a bead from analysis, you can select the check box for **Exclude**.
- 4. The # False option allows to force false reactions. HLA Fusion[™] Research re-analyzes the reaction allowing for one false reaction. By default, the software analyzes a sample until an HLA typing can be determined or until the analysis reaches the maximum number of false reactions set in the analysis configuration table. This is a useful tool for checking results, for example, it can be used to look for perfect matches with homozygosity or rare allele assignments. If desired, increase the number of false reaction to be forced and click on the Reanalyze button next.

To adjust Sample Cutoff Values, do the following.

- 1. Select the Adjust Cutoff check box to activate the adjust cut-off feature.
- 2. Click on histogram to set new cut off value to that position. Click the **Reanalyze** button to re-analyze the sample. You can change a bead cut-off value for each sample individually.
- 3. Clear the Adjust Cutoff check box to lock the cut off.

4. Click on the **Reset** button to reset the changed values back to default. The following options would be displayed to choose from.



Raw Tab

The Raw Data Table displays all raw data and test details for the current sample.

1. From the Analysis window Quadrant 2, click the Raw tab to display the Raw Data Table.

Bead	Raw	Bead In	fo						
					·	Threshold	3	Maximize -	Expand Table
	Bead ID	Rxn	Raw	Normal	Pos Ctl	OLI Cutoff	Sample Cutoff	Count	Sort by Column
•	001	1	33.24	0.4	057	30	30	119	
	002	8	2492.16	61.42	057	38	38	128	
	003	8	4086.18	100.97	057	50	50	100	
	004	1	54.42	0.92	057	30	30	138	
	006	8	2624.54	64.7	057	45	45	116	
	007	8	3163.96	78.09	057	32	32	117	
	008	1	14.36	0	057	50	50	145	
	009	8	4656.72	115.13	057	30	30	134	
	010	8	3669.64	90.63	057	30	30	121	
	035	1	17.17	0	057	2	2	132	
	052	8	1681.47	41.3	057	10	10	124	
	057	1	4047.09	100	057	100	100	138	

2. To change the threshold value, enter a new value in the Threshold field and press **Enter**. Normalized bead values that fall within the specified threshold range of the cutoff for that bead are highlighted. The raw table will be updated instantly highlighting the rows in yellow. The Bead IDs for the highlighted row is displayed in the **Close Bead Rxn** box.

Close	Bead F	λχυ		
#001	#005	#006	#007	#008

- 3. Click the Maximize button to expand the Raw Data Table. Click the X to close.
- 4. Double-click the blue horizontal panel in the raw tab to expand the raw data table within the **Analysis** window. To bring the table back to its original size, double-click the same position.
- 5. Clicking on any column header would sort the raw data table by that column.

Bead Info Tab

1. From the Analysis window Quadrant 2, click the **Bead Info** tab to display the allele specificity of the selected bead.



SSO Analysis window - Quadrant 3 Sample Profile

The Sample Profile displays each bead in the currently selected sample. Each bar represents a bead in the sample sorted by bead number and its height represents the normalized reaction value for the selected bead in that sample.



Red = positive reaction; Blue = negative reaction; Green = selected bead in quadrant 2.

The diamonds inside the histograms indicate the current cut-off position. Arrowheads identify the direction and position of cut off changes made to a bead.

1. Click arrow buttons on the toolbar to select a sample bar and display the selected sample in Quadrant 3. Alternatively, you can also select a sample from under the **Sample** drop-down list in the toolbar. You can also select a sample by double-clicking on a sample bar in the Bead Profile histogram.

2. Hover your cursor over any sample. The sample details are displayed, as shown below.



- 3. You can add comments to the sample by typing in the **Comment field** at the bottom. Double-clicking in this text box invokes a new window to type comments in.
- 4. The magenta bars on the left represent the raw data for positive controls. The up or down arrowheads below indicates the location of the adjusted cut off.
- 5. You can expand the histogram by double-clicking on the blue panel between quadrants 3 and 4. To resize the histogram to its original size, double-click on the blue panel between quadrants 1 and 3.

SSO Analysis window - Quadrant 4 - SSO Results and Assignment panel

Quadrant 4 displays possible typing assignments for the current sample. The left side shows possible allele pair assignments suggested by the software. You must make assignments manually. The right shows possible coded assignments.

KIR Results		
Summary	Allele Assignment	Final Assignment
Results 🔺	Alleles (0)	
KIR2DL1		
KIR2DL2		
KIR2DL4		
KIR2DL5		
KIR2DP1		
KIR2DS1	x	
KIR2DS2		
KIR2DS3		[
Positive Mismatch	Negative	

As the color code displayed in the figure above, the alleles highlighted in yellow are positive match, red ones are mismatches, and unhighlighted ones are negative. To make typing assignments, please see *Make Typing Assignments in SSO Analysis*, p. 48.

Analyze SSO Data

From the **Analysis** window you can:

- View raw data
- View reaction patterns
- View bead and sample details
- View results and make typing assignments

The raw data table can be used to easily review raw data, normalized data and cut-off values. The reaction pattern table can be used to compare reaction patterns. Reaction-specific pop-ups display the probe detail and reaction data for the selected sample and probe.

Make Typing Assignments in SSO Analysis

HLA FusionTM *Research* provides computer suggested assignments. Final typing assignments can only be made by the user. You can save multiple SSO Typing assignments. From the **Analysis** window you can assign typings and make manual assignments.

KIR Results Summary Allele Assignment **Final Assignment** Results Alleles (6) KIR2DI 3*005 KIR2DI 3 KIR2DL1 KIR2DP1*002 KIR2DP1*002 KIR2DL4*0080201 KIR KIR2DL2 KIR2DP1*002 KIR2DP1*00102 KIR2DP1*002 KIR2DP1 KIR2DL3 KIR2DP1*002 KIR2DP1*00101 Assign All KIR2DP1*00102 KIR2DP1*00102 KIR2DI 4 >> > KIR2DL5 KIR2DP1*00102 KIR2DP1*00101 Assign > KIR2DP1*00101 KIR2DP1*00101 KIR2DP1 KIR2DS1 х Remove • KIR2DS2 KIR2DS3 ٨ Positive Mismatch Negative

Typing Assignments

The SSO results are displayed in Quadrant 4 of the Analysis window. This quadrant is divided into three sections. The **Summary** section displays the system suggested results for the SSO locus groups, where the alleles highlighted in yellow are positive match, red are mismatch, and the rest unhighlighted ones are negative. To make a manual assignment, please follow the steps below. The Allele Assignment panel lists the possible allele pair results for the selected SSO locus groups.

- 1. Select an allele or several alleles from the **Summary** using the Control key in your keyboard, and click the **Assign** button to assign the SSO locus group in the Final Assignment panel.
- 2. To assign allele pairs, select one or more pair results from the allele assignment panel and click Assign.
- 3. Click the **Assign All** button to assign all Positive SSO locus groups. The selected allele(s) are displayed under the **Final Assignment**.
- 4. To remove any or all alleles from **Final Assignment** sections, select them and click the **Remove** (X) button.

Flagging a Sample for Further Testing

This option flags a sample for further testing in the current analysis session and reports in HLA FusionTM *Research*. More testing flag is saved with analysis.

• In the Analysis window, select the More Test check box below the Assignments area.

Reanalyze

Click on the **Reanalyze** button to reanalyze the data based on user changes in the current session or sample.

Manual Assignments

Manual assignments must be entered in standard format with each allele separated by two spaces.

• Type the allele name in the text box below **Final Assignment** section and click on the button. The newly entered allele is displayed in the **Final Assignment** field.

SSO Batch Analysis

The batch analysis is carried out from the **Session Summary** screen. When the session summary for a new session is activated, a batch analysis is automatically run. Batch analysis allows you to quickly analyze a session and save it for later review and final assignments. You can graphically view samples during batch analysis, but no final typing assignments are made.

From the Session Summary you can:

- Run a Batch analysis for a session
- View the Batch Analysis Summary Chart

Save Assignments

Lab Technicians and Supervisors can save analysis results for further review and approval. Samples are marked as *Ready*.

• From the **Analysis** window, click **Save**>> to save analysis results and move to the next sample. Prior to confirming, a sample can be re-saved, if needed.

Confirm Assignments

When an analysis has been saved, lab Supervisors can review and confirm analysis results. Confirmed samples are marked as *Approved*. The Confirm button is gray when you view a saved but unconfirmed sample. The Confirm button is purple when you view an already confirmed sample. Samples may be reconfirmed.

1. From the **Analysis** window, click **Confirm**>> to confirm analysis results and move to the next sample.

Note:	The application records two levels of analysis reviews-Save and Confirm. For re-saved and reconfirmed
	analysis, only the last user to save or confirm is recorded.

Print Screen

Print Screen prints the currently displayed analysis screen.

• From the **Analysis** window tool bar, click the **Print Screen** button. A screen shot of the current screen is displayed in a new window.

Chapter 5 Micro SSP Analysis

The Micro SSPTM HLA typing trays use the sequence-specific primer technology. These trays are available in 96-well and 384-well format. The Micro SSP analysis feature of the program analyzes manually entered reaction patterns as a new session, and can continue the analysis of a previous session. Analysis results are based on catalog specifications, NMDP code, and serology code references that are provided with the software. Micro SSP analysis uses NMDP cross codes. The software suggests the allele pair assignments, but the final assignment has to be made by the user. The results can be saved in the database for further review by the Lab Technicians and for final approval by the Lab Supervisors.

Starting Micro SSP Analysis

The Micro SSP analysis feature of HLA Fusion[™] *Research* analyzes manually input reaction patterns as a new analysis session and can also continue the analysis of a previously unfinished session. Each session consists of as many samples as you wish to analyze with the same catalog information. It can also accept data from eGene and new samples can be added to an existing session.

- 1. Select **MicroSSP** home page button **SP** MicroSSP or the Micro SSP toolbar button **.**. The Micro SSP Home page is displayed.
- Note: If you are not using the default Fusion Research user interface, the data and links shown on the right side of the window in Figure 5-1 are not displayed. For information on accessing this same product data and configuration options, see the *Utilities* chapter.

Analyze Data Reports Data Sample Patient Info	o Profile Utilities Help	Exit					
1 🖞 🖓 🚇 🔍 📲 🖓 🖓	III 🚮 III 🐕 🛴	un un 🍃		Click to or	en Catalog	Cli	ck to open Update
		sion 20		Managor M	lindow	Do	foronco Filo window
Micro SSP					Indow	Re	
Manual Entry	Micro SSP Prod	uct and Catalog					
Include Imported		Active Catalogs: 329	Last Upda	ted Date: 11/23/2009	[Details] [Dow	wnload]	Click to open Available
c:\OLLEusion\data\session	Ser	ology Equivalent: 2010January; 5/	3/2010 NMDI	^o Update: 5/3/2010	Updates availa	able: 10 -	-Reference Update winc
CSV File Name	Micro SSP Confi	ouration					
Coverie Marie						[Edit]	Click to modify
		Lode: NMUP					Miero SCD global
	Antine Demonstration d	Allala Franciscus (name)					wicho sse global
	Active Demographic 7.	Allele Frequency: (none)					settings
	Bud /	Rw6 Information: No					
	00047						
	Micro SSP Prod	uct Documents					
	Catalog	Catalog Description	Worksheet (8.5x11)	Worksheet (11x17)	Probe/Primer	1	
	SSP1-01_001_08		SSP1-01_001_WS		SSP1-01_001_PRI		
	SSP1-01_001_09		SSP1-01_001_WS		SSP1-01_001_PRI		
	SSP1-01_002_00		SSP1-01_002_WS		SSP1-01_002_PRI		
	SSP1-01_002_01		SSP1-01_002_WS		SSP1-01_002_PRI		
	SSP1-03_001_06						
	SSP1-03_002_02		SSP1-03_002_WS		SSP1-03_002_PRI		
	SSP1-03_002_03		SSP1-03_002_WS		SSP1-03_002_PRI		
	SSP1-03_003_00		SSP1-03_003_WS		SSP1-03_003_PRI		
	SSP1-03_01A_09		SSP1-03_01A_WS		SSP1-03_01A_PRI		Click links to
	SSP1-03_01A_10		SSP1-03_01A_WS		SSP1-03_01A_PRI		display selected
	SSP1-05_002_08		SSP1-05_002_WS		SSP1-05_002_PRI		catalog
	SSP1-05_002_09		SSP1-05_002_WS		SSP1-05_002_PRI		-catalog,
	SSP1-07_002_09		SSP1-07_002_WS		SSP1-07_002_PRI		worksheet, or
	SSP1-07_002_10		SSP1-07_002_WS		SSP1-07_002_PRI		probe/primer
	SSP1-07_003_02		SSP1-07_003_WS		SSP1-07_003_PRI		documents
	SSP1-07_003_04		SSP1-07_003_WS		SSP1-07_003_PRI		uocuments.
	SSP1-08_001_02						
) Home			SSP1-08_002_WS		SSP1-08_002_PRI		
Home	SSP1-08_002_07			1	0.0004-000-0000-0001	1	
P Home P Micro SSP	<u>SSP1-08_002_07</u> <u>SSP1-08_002_08</u>		SSP1-08_002_WS		SSP1-08 002 PRI	_	
Home IP Micro 55P IO S50	<u>SSP1-08 002 07</u> <u>SSP1-08 002 08</u> <u>SSP1-08 003 02</u>		SSP1-08_002_WS SSP1-08_003_WS		SSP1-08_002_PRI SSP1-08_003_PRI		
Home If Micro 55P 30 550 A ConsenSus	SSP1-08 002 07 SSP1-08 002 08 SSP1-08 003 02 SSP1-08 003 03		SSP1-08_002_WS SSP1-08_003_WS SSP1-08_003_WS		<u>SSP1-08_002_PRI</u> <u>SSP1-08_003_PRI</u> <u>SSP1-08_003_PRI</u>		

Figure 5-1: Micro SSP Home Page

Note: Open worksheets and probe/primer sheets to verify the accuracy of revision numbers (these documents do not contain a revision number in their filename).

2. Click the **Manual Entry** button. The Manual Entry window is displayed.

52



Figure 5-2: Micro SSP Manual Entry Window

- 3. The system assigns a Batch Name automatically. Optionally, you can change the name.
- Note: A batch name must be unique to the Fusion Research database for each product type. If it already exists, the software prompts you to rename the batch. It is also highly recommended that you do not use any special characters in this field since they may serve a specific purpose as field separators (see *Special Characters to Avoid in Filenames*, p. 136).
- 4. Use the drop-down menu in the **Catalog** field to select a catalog file.
- Note: If you need to import more catalogs, click the **Download** link on the Micro SSP home page and see Chapter 11, *Utilities*, p. 117 for instructions on how to add new catalog files to the database.

The catalog drop-down list may not be immediately updated if you downloaded the catalogs during this import session. You may need to click the **Home** button and then click the **Micro SSP** button again to return to the import process.

5. Accept the session name in the **Session** field, or modify it.

- 6. Enter a name in the **Sample Name** field. If this is an existing sample name, other fields, such as the Patient ID and Ethnicity, are populated with existing data.
- 7. Click the drop-down arrow in the **Sample Date** field and select a date. The analysis window for this session is displayed.
- 8. If you want to associate a gel image with the sample, double-click in the **Gel Image** field and browse the location of the image you want to add to the sample.
- Note: The only format supported for the Gel IMage import is JPEG format.

Batch N	ame: Micro SSP_201	00208141840	Existing Bat	ches:		•	Find Batch	Date: 8/12/	2009 💌 ~	2/ 8/2010	•	
	Catalog	Session		Test Date	Sample Name	Sample Date	Patient ID	First Name	Last Name	Ethnicity	Patient/ Donor	Gel Image
•	SSP1-01_002_01	Micro SSP_201	00208141840	02/08/2010 🝷	1	02/08/2010	1	<none></none>	<none></none>		▼ Patient ▼	N
*		•		-							•	45
			ppen Look if My Recert Documents Desktop My Documents My Documents My Computer My Network: Desce	 HLA Fusic Batch_Sess Beta and H CD copies f ConsenSys Deployment Design Inpu End User PI Fonts Fusion Design HistoTrac D HLA Fusion HLA Vandi HLAV andi LABXPress L File name: 	n ion Files O Catalogs O Catalogs Design and User i: t DFs for Fusion CI catalog Files gn and User Doc B and Store Proc Build and Install LA Fusion 1.2: x Design and User Phase_I	adm to use Documentation Ds umentation Database Documentation	Constant Sector Se	Second Se	2 X ion Tookt n and User Scripts UCLA PAN UCLA PAN Depen			
				Files of type:					Cancel			

Figure 5-3: Select Gel Image Browser

- 9. Repeat the above steps until you complete the batch information, or until you want to save and complete the batch later. Each Micro SSP batch session can consist of as many samples as you wish to analyze with the same or with different catalog information.
- 10. Take one of the following actions once you are ready to stop creating the batch:
 - Click **Next**> to open the Micro SSP analysis window.
 - Click **Save** to save the current batch information to return to later.
 - Click **New Batch** to start creation of a new batch.
 - Click Close to exit the **Manual Entry** window.

54

Displaying a Micro SSP Analysis Window

- 1. Open a Micro SSP session.
- 2. Click on a sample to display its analysis in the **Analysis** window. See *Using the Micro SSP Analysis window*, p. 57 for more information.

	Sample ID: dna539	- Cear	Find Allele		#False 1 C Force 1 Rxm Reset
	H G F	E D C B A	Rxn		
					Мак
		= 	2 3	17 1 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 18 19 20 21 22 23 24	<u>^</u>
			 IG 19 	1 3H 1H 1D 1C 1B 1A 2H 2G 2F 2E 2D 2C 2B 2A 3G 3F 3E 3D 3C 3B 3A	
			Sample Bxn X X	X	
Insuration of		- 	DRB1/03010101 X X		Poaction
Input and			DRB1*03010102 X X	x	Reduction
omoluolo	04		DRB1*030102 X X	X	Dattorn
anarysis			DEB1/030103 X X	X Y	rattern
- 6	. cr.		DRB1'030105 X X	x	tabla
OF	05		DRB1*030106 X X	x	lable
			DRB1*0332 X X	X	
samples	06		DRB110334 X X	X	
			DRB110336 X X	X X	
	07		DRB1*0342 X X		
			DRB1*110601	х	
	08		DRB1*110602	X	
			DRB1*1121	X	
	09		DRB1*1157	X	
			DRB1*130101	X	
	10		DRB1*130102	x	
			DRB11130103	X	<u> </u>
	11				
			Pairs Match	Possible Allele Code	Posuits (Translate Possible Serology
	12		DRB1 080101 DRB1 0301010	DR81=03XX1 DR81=03XX2	
(View Cel Add New Sample	Analyze Combined Reanalyze	DRB1*03010101 DRB1*030103	DRB1=03003 DRB1=11ENT2 DRB1=03004 DRB1=13ENUA	area DR17 DR1
	The state of the s	ready combined ready cc	DEB1*03010101 DEB1*0334	DRB1*03XX5 DRB1*14ENUB	DR17 DR13
			DR81*(3010101	ticnlave allele naire	DR17 DR6 DR17 DR14
			DRB1*03010101	lispiays allele pails	DR- DR-
			DRB1*03010101		DR- DRII
	Click to view	<i>w</i> or add a	DRB1*03010101 Match	roups and condenses 4/52/57/59/61/64/68/69/83/87	DRB1*03010101 DRB1* ^
	and the second for		DPB1*03010101	a tan a tala a san a	DRB1*03010101 DRB1* DRB1*03010102 DRB1*
	gei image (r	must be a	DPB1*03010101	Dairs with same	DRB1*03010102 DRB1*
			DRB1*03010101	coaction nottorn	Click to translate to new
	JPEG Image	to add It).	DRB1#03010101	eaction pattern	
	, v		DFB1*03010101 DFB1*131101		allele nomenclature format
			DPB1*03010101 DPB1*131102		
			DRB1*03010101 DRB1*1318		(only applies if old results;
			DRB1*03010101 DRB1*1320		
					mew results will already be
			Assigned Allele Pairs X V	Assigned Allele Code	
					in new allele format)
					· · · · ·
					More Tests
		Comment	Possible Homozyaous Ambiauo -	UNIT ALIGNMENT	Assign>> Save>> Confirm>>
		comment	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		

Configuring Micro SSP Data Analysis



The defaults for the configurations can be set from the Utilities menu in the main HLA FusionTM *Research* window. Please refer to the **Utilities** chapter for more information on setting the default configurations. Configurations can be set from within the analysis window for the current analysis. If you are starting an analysis session, you can change configuration options before you begin the session.

Change Current Configuration

Before starting analysis, you can change analysis options for the current session and all subsequent sessions by using the Configuration menu shown below. Changes to configuration settings in analysis affect the current sample, any samples added after the change for the current session only.

1. To change configuration settings for all new sessions, right click on the blue panel below the toolbar. A list of configuration options will be displayed.

~	NMDP Code	
	No Code	
	Local Code	
	Cross Code	
	Bw4 Bw6	
	Demographic Info	

Assign Code

~	NMDP Code						
	No Code						
	Local Code						
	Cross Code						

By default, the system assigns the NMDP codes to the alleles. However, the user can optionally change these codes to either No Code, Local Code or Cross Code.

Bw4/Bw6 in Serology

Bw4/Bw6 in Serology

Serology has identified many pairs of HLA-B alleles which appear to differ only at the Bw4/Bw6 region, the two mutually exclusive serological epitopes. If you are involved in Bw4/Bw6 research, you may optionally change the configuration to this option.

56

Demographic Information



The Demographic Information option offers to determine allele frequency within a particular population.

Entering Micro SSP Reactions Input Panel

The Micro SSP reaction input panel is set up in the same format as the test gel. For multi-test trays, you can skip tray positions to match your gel photos by clicking the Add New Sample button until the correct test position is displayed.

From the Analysis window you can:

- Enter reaction patterns and begin analysis
- Change default reaction pattern values
- Change configuration settings

Entering Micro SSP Reactions

To enter a reaction, simply click on the well until it displays the correct reaction value or type in reaction value for well. The reaction for one sample may be entered at a time. You can enter a new sample at any time during analysis of a new or existing session by clicking **Add New Sample**. New samples use the same catalog information as the rest of the session and also the most current configuration settings.

- 1. From the Analysis window, enter a sample name in the **Sample ID** box.
- 2. Enter test reactions by clicking on a well to change the reaction value, or by typing in a reaction value (1, 8 or 0).
- 3. Click the **Analyze** button.

Note: If the sample has already been analyzed once, click the **Reanalyze** button.

4. To enter a new sample, click the **Add New Sample** button at any time during analysis. Be sure to Save or Confirm any changes to an analysis before adding a new sample.

Using the Micro SSP Analysis window

The **Analysis window** displays detailed analysis information for each sample in the session. You can review the allele assignments suggested by the program, modify and accept the assignments. HLA FusionTM *Research* suggests possible typing results, but you make the final assignment. Any adjustments made in the Analysis window are sample-specific and affect only individual samples.

From the Analysis window you can do the following:

- View and print sample analysis results
- Use the Reaction Pattern Table
- Add comments and mark for more testing
- Change the allowable number of false reactions
- Force one false reaction

Micro SSP Analysis window Overview

Micro SSP analysis allows you to view analysis details, make adjustments and make typing assignments using the **Analysis window**.

View Well Details

You can view details about the current sample by holding your mouse pointer over a well in the **Reaction Pattern** Grid.

1. From the Analysis window, hold your cursor over a well to view details.



Add New Sample

For multi-test trays, you can skip tray positions to match your gel photos by clicking the **Add New Sample** button until the correct test position is displayed.

Using the Reaction Pattern Table

The Micro SSP reaction pattern table can be sorted by allele name, reaction pattern or well position. The following distinguish the various table entries:

- Positive alleles are highlighted in yellow.
- If a well is a potential false positive, its column is highlighted red.

- If it is a potential false negative, its column is highlighted green.
- Cross Loci wells are indicated with a # symbol in the Cross Loci row for that well position.
- The table can be sorted by typing an allele into the field. This moves the allele to the first row and freezes the row.



- 1. To **Sort by Allele**, double click on an allele name to bring that allele to the top of the table. Type an allele or partial allele name in the **Find Allele** field, and click the **Find Allele** button. Matches are moved to the top of the Reaction Pattern Table.
- 2. To **Sort by Reaction Pattern**, click on the left most column of the allele name on the gray area. The positive reactions would be skewed to the left of the table. Click the **Rxn Reset** button to reset the table to original configuration.
- 3. To Sort by Well Position, click on any column header to sort all alleles by reaction value.
- 4. Double-click the gray panel above the table. The reaction table is expanded. To bring the table back to its original size, double-click the gray panel once again.

Number of Allowable False Reactions

If HLA FusionTM *Research* cannot determine any results that exactly match the reaction pattern entered, it analyzes the reaction assuming that there is one false reaction in the sample. If a solution still cannot be found, the system continues to search through additional false reactions until the number of allowable false reaction has been reached or a solution is found. The number of false reactions sets the maximum allowable false reactions for an analysis.

• In the **# False Rxn** field within the **Analysis** window, click the up or down arrow to change the number of allowable false reactions.

Force One False Reaction

When a sample has a result with no false reactions (exact match result), the **Force 1** feature forces HLA FusionTM *Research* to re-analyze the reaction to allow for one possible false reaction in any well. This feature is used to search for results that have close reactions to the actual reaction.

- 1. From the Analysis window, click **Force 1** to force the program to analyze the sample with one false reaction.
- 2. Click **Rxn Reset** to return to the default results.

Micro SSP Combined Analysis

HLA FusionTM *Research* compares the sample IDs in the current session with sample IDs in existing sessions, and gives you the option to analyze the sample using readings for both Serology sessions. You can also combine sample readings from a LABType session with those from a Serology session as detailed below.

60

1. From the Analysis window, click on the **Analyze Combined** button. The next pop-up window displays previous session name to choose from.

Combined Analysis							
Sample Name: sample1							
	Combine	Session Name	Catalog ID	Well Position	Locus	Analysis Date	N D
	V	RSSO2Q_002_SESSION_07172007	RSS02QA1_001_06	НЗ	DQA1		Ja
.0		RSSO2Q_002_SESSION	RSSO2Q_002_01	нз	DQB1,DQA1		Ja
•							Þ
					Ana	alyze C	ancel

2. To select the desired previous session(s), check the box next to it and click the Analyze button.

Note: You will notice that the **Analyze Combined** button in the Analysis window changes to **Reanalyze Combine** button. This is an indication that the selected sessions have been combined and reanalyzed.

To combine results for a sample, you need to start or continue a Micro SSP allele specific test and have a previously saved Micro SSP or LABType session to combine with it. After combining sessions, the possible typing assignments are displayed, and the reaction pattern table changes to reflect the reaction pattern of both trays. The reaction wells tray you combined with the current sample is marked with a * next to the well position.

Note: When running a combined analysis with a new sample/test, the user must first enter reactions and analyze sample, and then Analyze Combined can be performed.

Making Typing Assignments in Micro SSP Analysis

HLA FusionTM *Research* provides computer-suggested allele pairs and coded assignments. Final typing assignments can only be made by the user.

From the Analysis window you can:

- Assign non-coded allele pairs
- Assign a coded allele pair

- Assign serological equivalents
- Make manual assignments
- Remove assignments
- Save and Confirm assignments

Possible Allele Pairs

The Possible Allele Pairs panel displays all possible typing assignments for the current sample. If there is only one coded allele pair typing assignment, you can assign it and move to the next sample with one button. Only the coded assignment is saved.

Allele Pair Assignments

- 1. Select an allele pair in the Possible Allele Pairs panel.
- 2. Click the **Assign** button next to **Assigned Allele Pairs** to add the assignment to the final assignment area. Alternatively, you can double click on the allele pair to assign it to the final assignment area.
- 3. To remove an assignment, highlight the assignment in the final assignments area and click on X.



Manual Allele Pair Assignment

Manual assignments must be entered in standard format (locus*four digits space locus*four digits).

Assigned Allele Pairs	V X
DQA1*0301 DQA1*0302	2
DQA1*0302 DQA1*030	2
DQA1*0332 DQA1*033	1
DQA1*0332 DQA1*0333	L 🚽

- 1. Type an assignment into the text box right below **Assigned Alelle Pairs**.
- 2. Click Enter and the typed allele is displayed in the Assigned Alelle Pairs text box.

Allele Code Assignments



The allele codes displayed in the **Possible Allele Code** text box are condensed ones that the system suggests from the list of possible allele pairs displayed.

• To assign an allele, select its code and click the **Assign** button.

Manual Allele Code Assignment

- 1. Type an assignment into the text box right below Assigned Allele Code.
- 2. Click Enter and the typed allele code would be appear in the Assigned Allele Code text box

Serology Assignment

Possible Serology	
Sero Not Assigned	— Select
Assigned Serology X V	— Assign — Manually Enter Assignment

Highlighting a serological typing pair displays all allele equivalent possibilities for the current sample. Serological equivalents are saved in addition to any allele or code assignments.

- 1. The **Possible Serology** panel displays serological equivalents for the current sample.
- 2. Highlight an assignment and click the Assign button to assign serology. It would be displayed under the **Assigned Serology** panel.
- 3. Click the X to remove typing assignment.

Bw4/Bw6 configuration results appear here.

Other Assignment

This tool allows non-formatted final assignment.



Type an allele pair or allele code and click Enter. The typed allele would be assigned and included in the report.

Unknown Allele Codes

Unknown allele codes are marked with XX followed by a sequential number. The numbers are reset to 1 for each sample and locus. You can store these unknowns for later submission in a .txt file named nmdp_code_report.txt and located in the C:\Program Files\One Lambda\HLAFusion\data folder. Code information is stored in the text file as it is added with the newest additions at the bottom.

- 1. From the Analysis window, click the XX code in the Possible Allele Code box to display the XX Code bar.
- 2. When you select an allele code under the **Possible Allele Code** text box, the +**Rpt/Close** button appears on top of the **More Test** button.
- 3. To add the code information to the .txt file, click +**Rpt**. Click **Close** to close the bar.
- 4. The allele code would be included in the text file, as shown below.



Remove Assignments

You can select more than one specificity to remove by holding down the Ctrl key and clicking multiple specificities.

• From the Analysis window, highlight specificities in the Assignment boxes and click X to remove.

Sample Comments

Sample comments are displayed for that sample's results in the current analysis and reports in HLA FusionTM Research.

5/14/10
• In the **Analysis** window, type sample comments into the Comment field below the Assignments area. Double clicking in this text box would invoke a new window to type comments in. Comments are saved with analysis.

	A
Comment	

Flagging a Sample for Further Testing

This option flags a sample for further testing in the current analysis session and reports in HLA Fusion[™] *Research*. More testing flag is saved with analysis.

1. In the Analysis window, check the More Test check box below the Assignments area.

Save Assignments

Lab Technicians and Supervisors can save analysis results for further review and approval. Samples are marked as "Ready".

1. From the Analysis window, click **Save**>> to save analysis results and move to the next sample. Prior to confirming, a sample can be re-saved, if needed.

Confirm Assignments

When an analysis has been saved, lab Supervisors can review and confirm analysis results. Confirmed samples are marked as *Approved*. The Confirm button is gray when you view a saved but unconfirmed sample. The Confirm button is purple when you view an already confirmed sample. Samples may be reconfirmed.

- 1. From the Analysis window, click Confirm>> to confirm analysis results and move to the next sample.
- **Note:** The application records two level analysis reviews—Save and Confirm. For re-saved and reconfirmed analysis, only the last user to save or confirm is recorded.

Chapter 6 Session Summary and Logs

What is Session Summary?

The session summary table presents a pre-analysis of the results. It lists each sample in the session and their saved analysis results. This option allows you to quickly analyze a session in HLA FusionTM *Research*, and save it for later review and final assignments. You can graphically view samples during batch analysis, but no final typing assignments are made. The summary table can simply be launched by clicking on a session in the Navigation tree.

Note: You can return to a session summary from the Analysis Window any time by clicking the $\langle Summary$ link from the HLA FusionTM $\langle Emphasis \rangle$ Research toolbar next to the sample/session ID.

Example Session Summary

The figure below displays the session summary displayed by clicking on a session. The summary table displays the analysis results for each sample in the selected session.

	Filt	er							
	Analysis File Analysis								
	0 8 8 4	B Q 1	A .8			Session	n ID		
Field	Export	Print	Preview	-				Navigator II C Duty	
Chooser						/		LABType	Navigation
Button				Session : b	40_012507TRAY9DEMO Catalog SSP1-40_002	03 Locus : B		MicroSSP B St 640_012507TRAY9	Tree
	O1 sample1	4 Patient	Comment	B*1807 B*4040 B*35XX1 B*4040	AVM:=<01/02/03/04/05/06/07/08 AYYP:=<16/32/34	Assigned Allele Code	Assigned A	640_012507TR4Y9DEM0 MicroSSP_20070713104418 MicroSSP_20070713104418	
Session	02 sample2							MicroSSP_20070716111240	
Summary	03 sample3	Psample3						KIR SET	

- Double-click a sample in the Summary Table or a data point to go directly to the analysis screen for this sample.
- Click on the **Field Chooser** button to the left of the table headings. The **Field Chooser** window is displayed. In this window, you can select or clear the check boxes next to column headings to add or remove those columns from the Summary Table. Checking or unchecking in this window instantly updates the table.



- Click on any column header of the Summary Table to sort the table by that column. The up or down arrows in the column header indicate the sorting order—up for ascending; down for descending.
- Click on the **Export** button to save the Summary Table on your computer or the network. The file will be saved in Excel (*.XLS) format.

	Α	В	С	D	E	F
1	Wel	Sample	Session	Catalog	Locus	Patient
2	01	sample1	b40_012507	SSP1-40_002	в	
3	02	sample2	b40_012507	SSP1-40_002	В	
4	03	sample3	640_01250	SSP1-40_002	в	Psample3

- Click **Print** to print out a report of the Summary Table.
- Click **Preview** to view report of the Summary Table.

🔍 Print Preview					
<u>F</u> ile <u>V</u> iew <u>T</u> ools					
	0 2) 1	00 %	- 📀 🗄	⊞ ▼ <u>C</u> lose _₹
					Session : h40 (
	团		Sample 🛛 🕫	Patient	Comment
2		01	sample1		
		02	sample2		
		03	sample3	Psample3	
3				1	~
	jiii				>
					Page: 1 of 3

- In the print preview window, the slider on the left displays various sections of the comprehensive report.
- Double click on a sample in the Summary Table to go directly to the analysis screen for that sample.
- You can filter the samples by clicking the **Filter** button in the sample column header. This displays the filter-by options, as shown below.



The session name is displayed at the top of the Summary Table.

					Session : b40_0	12507TRAY9DEMO Catalog:SSP1-40_002_03 Locus:B
ł		Sample 477	Patient	Comment	Possible Allele Code	Code Definition
J	01	sample1			B*1807 B*4040 B*35XX1 B*4040	AVM:=:01/02/03/04/05/06/07/08 AYYP:=:16/32/34
۲	02	sample2				
	03	sample3	Psample3	1 ch d 0 ch di ch di ch di ch di ch di ch di 0	n an an an an an la beard an	

Creating and Managing Session Logs

HLA FusionTM *Research* allows you the capability to create log files of your analysis sessions, which you can then print or archive.

See the following sections for procedures to create, manage, and print analysis session log files.

Creating a Session Log

- 1. Click the Main Menu option Data.
- 2. Provide all necessary session input information by using the drop-down menus and search buttons on the left side of the Data window.
- 3. Once a session is selected, its information is displayed on the right side of the window where you can add information.
- 4. Once you have all information you want to include in the log, click Save.

Managing Session Logs

- 1. Click the main menu option Data.
- 2. Provide all necessary session input information by using the drop-down menus and search buttons on the left side of the Data window in order to bring up the session you want.
- 3. Once you have displayed the session log you want, use the Archive, Active and Delete buttons at the bottom of the window to manage the log.

Printing Session Logs

- 1. Click the main menu option Data.
- 2. Provide all necessary session input information by using the drop-down menus and search buttons on the left side of the Data window in order to bring up the session you want.
- 3. Once you have displayed the session log you want, use the Print Session Log button at the bottom of the window to manage the log.

Chapter 7 **Reports**

HLA FusionTM *Research* provides different report formats in which to output your analysis data and results. From the Reports menu you can do the following:

- Create, print and export reports for analysis data for all supported products
- Create custom reports for which you determine content type
- Create reports for electronic submission, such as NMDP HML reports
- Store as many as 18 reports in a My Favorites list for convenient access
- Modify the appearance of any report, such as fonts, formatting, and background colors (supervisors only)

Note: To view reports, your computer must have some form of printer driver installed. If you do not have a printer driver installed, you can download a free copy of PDF Distiller from Adobe.com, or Microsoft Office Document Image Writer from Microsoft.com.

In addition, you can print and export these reports from the analysis or batch summary window.

Using the Reports Window

The following sections describe how to create, save and print a report containing your analysis data. Here are the main steps you must take to create a report from this window:

- 1. Select a report type.
- 2. As needed, select criteria to refine report input, such as date range.
- 3. Select the sessions or samples to include in the report.
- 4. Select the View Report or the Export Report button

Accessing the Reports Window

- Access the Reports window in one of two ways:
 - From the home page, click Create Reports.
 - From the Fusion Research main menu options, select Reports.

The **Reports** window is displayed, with a list of any sessions that fall within the date range (based on the session date range set in the Find **a** dialog box). If no session are displayed, try modifying the date range.



Reports

Figure 7-1: Reports Window

Select Report Type

• Select a report from the report type menu options displayed at the top of the **Reports** window. The list of sessions in the right pane of the Reports window is filtered to display only the ones related to the selected report type. For a list of reports you can generate, see *Report Types*, p. 216.

Report Type Menu Options

💫 HLA Fu	sion™ (Researc	:h)							
Analyze Dat	a Reports Data	Sample	Patient In	fo Profi	le Utilities	Help &	Exit		
合合		0 11 1		1	🛛 🔝 👹	16 1	u u 🍾		
Patient	Generic Typing	MicroSSP	550	LCT S	pecialty	5tatistica	Miscellaneous	My Favorite	e Tools

Refine Report Input

- If needed, use the left panel of the **Reports** window, to further filter the sessions you want to include in your report. There are a number of criteria you can set:
 - Enter a Patient ID, Session or Sample ID fields, or browse for the information with the **Browse** button _____.
 - Adjust the date range. Use the drop-down calendars in the **Session Date** fields to select a different start and end date.

- Enter or browse for specific sample or session characteristics or status (see below).

Patient ID:	*		
Session:	*		
	*		
Sample ID:		-	
Session Date:	5/28/2009 🗙 😞 6/11/2009	~	
	Include all records for samples	5	click to filter sessions by
	Include all combined samples		Cilcle to Intel Sessions by
	Reset Find		
Level VD.			
Local ID:	<u></u>	-	
Catalog Type:	*	-	
Catalog ID:	*	-	sample or session status or
Locus :	*		characteristics criteria
TestType :	*	-	
Tech ID:	*	~	
Session Status:	*	-	
~ San	ple Profile	·	
	Nore Tests Needed		
	⊖Yes ⊖No ⊙All		
	Notes/Remarks Added		
	Assignments Made		
	⊖Yes ⊖No ⊙All		
	Seneric Ambiguity Exists		
	alse Reaction Exists		
	O Yes O No ⊙ All		
L	.BSW Generated		
	⊖Yes ⊖No ⊙All		

• Once you set criteria and click the **Find** button on the left panel of the **Reports** window, the session list in the right panel of the window filters accordingly.

Session/Sample Selection

• In the sessions list, click the + sign next to any session to expand the display to show its samples.

CI sa	ick tab mples o	to viev or only	v sam the s	iple ele	s—either a	all										
Г	Sessions	Sa	Imples													
Session with	Includ V	7	9	Session	1	V	Test Date 🛛	Produc	st Type 🔽	Operator	V	Session	Status 🖓	Sessio	n Date 🛛	
some, but not all		980204_LS	1A03_008	_ID146	6	02	2/04/2009	LABSo	reen	oli		PROCESS	SED	03/11/2	010	
samples selected	⊕ - □	06-28-05 Je	hn Hopkin:	s LS1_(009_1	06	5/28/2005	LABSo	reen	oli		PROCESS	SED	03/12/2	010	
samples selected	•• □	06-28-05 Jo	hn Hopkin:	s LS2_/	009_2	06	3/28/2005	LABSo	reen	oli		PROCESS	SED	03/12/2	Session Date V 3/11/2010 3/12/2010 3/12/2010 3/12/2010 3/12/2010 03/12/2	
Session with all		06-28-05 Ja	hn Hopkin	s LSSir	ngleAntigen	06	5/28/2005	LABSo	reen	oli	1	PROCESS	6ED	03/12/2	010	
samples selected		06-28-05 Jo 06-12-05_c	ihn Hopkin Isa123_15	s LSSi ID62	ngleAntigen_A	06	3/28/2005 2/06/2005	LABSc LABSc	reen treen	oli oli		PROCESS PROCESS	SED SED	03/12/2	010 010	
-	Inclu	ıd ⊽ NB ⊽	NM V M	or V	Sample V	Wel 4 1	√ Well Statu	is V	Catalog	ıD ⊽	Patien	it 🛛	Analyzed	iBy ⊽	Analysis 🕤	7
					neg control	1 (A3)	Batch Import	:ed	LS1A04_U	JU2_UU			oli		J3/12/2010	-
					1204492 estrei	2 (83)	Batch Import	ed ted	LS1A04_0	002_00			0 ali		03/12/2010	-
					4204433 campi	3 (C3)	Batch Import	ted.	LS1A04_0	102_00			oli		03/12/2010	-
Samples					4205137 adams	5 (E3)	Batch Import	ted	LS1A04_0	002_00	_		oli		03/12/2010	-
oumpros					4204454 clark	6 (F3)	Batch Impor	ted	LS1A04 (002 00			oli		03/12/2010	
	Session Samples Session ▼ Test Date ♥ Product Type ▼ Operator ▼ Session Status ▼ Session but not all 980204_L51A03_008_ID1466 02/04/2009 LABScreen oli PR0CESSED 03/12/20 cs selected 06-28/05 John Hopkins LS1_009_1 06/28/2005 LABScreen oli PR0CESSED 03/12/20 cion with all 06-28/05 John Hopkins LS2_009_2 06/28/2005 LABScreen oli PR0CESSED 03/12/20 cion with all 06-28/05 John Hopkins LSSingleAntigen_A 06/28/2005 LABScreen oli PR0CESSED 03/12/20 cion with all Includ ▼ NM ▼ MM ▼ Sample ▼ 06/28/2005 LABScreen oli PR0CESSED 03/12/20 cion with all Includ ▼ NB ▼ NM ▼ Sample ▼ Vel △ ▼ Vel △ ▼ Catalog ID ▼ Patient ▼ Analyzed By ▼ ciss selected Includ ▼ NB ▼ NM ▼ MM ▼ Sample ▼ Vel △ ▼ Vel △ ▼ Catalog ID ▼ Patient ▼ Analyzed By ▼ oli 0 oli 0 0 0 0 0 0 <td>03/12/2010</td> <td></td>	03/12/2010														
					4203412 falema	8 (H3)	Batch Import	ted	LS1A04_0	002_00			oli		03/12/2010	
	Γ				4205860 clark	9 (A4)	Batch Import	ted	LS1A04_0	002_00			oli		03/12/2010	
					ab7226837	10 (B4)	Batch Import	ted	LS1A04_0	002_00			oli		03/12/2010	
	Includ V	7	9	Session	1	V	Test Date 🛛	Produc	ot Type 🔽	Operator	V	Session	Status 🗸	Session	n Date 🔽	
	••• □	06-12-05_c	lsa123_15_1	ID62_/	4	12	2/06/2005	LABSo	reen	oli		PROCESS	SED	03/12/2	010	

• Select the check boxes next to each sample you want to include in a report. Select the check box next to a session ID to include all of its samples. (Deselect the check box of any sample or session you do not want to include in the report.)

If at least one sample has been selected for a session, the **Include** cell for that session is highlighted with grey. If all samples for a session are selected, there is a check box in the Include In cell.

- (Optional) To view all the samples available, or to view only the samples you have selected so far, click the **Samples** tab and select or deselect the check box for **Show selected samples**.
- Alternatively, you can right-click on a session and apply one of he following:

Select All	
Deselect All	
Analysis Select	•
Category Select	×

- Select All: select all sessions and samples for inclusion in the report.
- Deselect All: deselect all sessions and samples from inclusion in the report.
- Analysis Select: specify the analysis product report type (LABType, Micro SSP, LABScreen, etc.)

Reports

- Category Select: choose the report category—molecular or antibody.

Note: To create a separate report for each selected sample, select the check box next to **1 Sample per Report**.

View, Print or Export Reports

- Once you have the report type and all the samples selected, click **View Report**. The report is displayed in a separate window, the **Report Viewer**.
- The Report Viewer contains various toolbar buttons to allow you to export, print and navigate through your report. The functionality of these buttons is described in the following table.

Toolbar Button	Function
Ð	Export Report: exports reports in one of several available formats, including Crystal Report, Adobe PDF, and Microsoft Word.
ő	Print Report: prints the current report.
	Toggle Group Tree: opens a tree panel on the left, listing the samples included in the current report.
H 4 P H	Previous and Next Page: if the report has multiple pages, these buttons allow you to page back and forth in the report.
m	Find Text: displays a dialog box that allows you to enter text to search for in the report.
M -	Zoom: select the magnification at which to display the current report by clicking on the drop-down list.

• To close the **Report Viewer** window, click the **Close** button 🛛 in upper right corner of the viewer.

Export Report

1. Click the **Export Report** button **Export Report** when you want to export a report in one of several standard formats. The **Select Output Directory and Save Type** dialog box is displayed.



Enter a name for the current exported report, or browse for a report file to export. Select a format from the Save as type drop-down list (Excel, Acrobat, Word, or Rich Text format), and click OK. By default, the file is saved in C:\OLI Fusion\data\report). You can change where these files are saved by modifying the *Interface* path (see Setting HLA Fusion Research Default URLs and Directory Paths, p. 132).

Accessing Reports from the My Favorite Menu

The **My Favorite** menu is a convenient way for you to access and generate the reports you use most. You can make as many as 18 report types available from the **My Favorite** drop-down, including custom reports. Adding to or deleting from the list is easy.

Adding Reports to My Favorite

- 1. Make sure you have selected the report you want to add to **My Favorite** (verify that its name is displayed in the **Report Options** section of the Reports window).
- 2. Select **My Favorite > Add to My Favorite**.

Miscellaneous	My Favorite Tools
	Add to My Favorite
🔄 1 Sample Per	Remove from My Favorite
View Descal	QC Overview
view Report	L Aport Treport

The current report name is added to your **My Favorite** menu. When you want to generate this report, just click on its name from the bottom portion of the **My Favorite** menu.



Removing Reports from My Favorite

1. Select **My Favorite**, and select the report you want to remove from the list of reports at the bottom of the menu. The **My Favorite** menu closes.



2. Select **My Favorite > Remove from My Favorite**. The report you selected in step 1 is no longer displayed at the bottom of the **My Favorite** menu.



Reports Tools

Customizing Report Appearance

Note: You must be a supervisor-level user in HLA Fusion *Research* and have Crystal Report Designer software installed on your computer to use this feature.

This feature allows you to format the appearance of HLA Fusion *Research* reports to meet your specific needs. For example, you can change font style, size and color as well as the location of text and data fields on the report.

Reports

• HLA Fusion *Research* automatically launches the report designer if it is installed in the default directory (C:\Program Files\Business Objects\BusinessObjects Enterprise 12.0\win32_x86\crw32.exe).

Version 2.0

• Use Notepad to open the OneLambda.Fusion.Interface.exe file, located in C:\Program Files\One Lambda\HLAFusion\IVD. Make sure that Crystal Report Designer path name is entered on the following line of this file (see figure below): <add key="ReportDesigner" value="C:\Program Files\Business Objects\BusinessObjects Enterprise 12.0\win32_x86\crw32.exe" />



- Please note that all the report files used in HLA Fusion *Research* are installed in the directory C:\OLI Fusion\rpt, and they all have the extension of .rpt. These files can be moved anywhere for central access, but to do so, you must update *OneLambda.Fusion.Interface.exe* file to reflect the new location (see figure above).
- When you open a report to customize it, a backup copy is automatically created with the timestamp as the suffix of the report name. This allows you to retrieve the original report format, if needed.
- 1. Select **Reports > Tools > Customize Report**.
- 2. Use the Crystal Report Designer tools to modify the appearance of your report.
- 3. Once you have made changes to the report format, save it. Make sure you do not change the name of the report file. Next time you run this report in HLA Fusion *Research*, the report will have the appearance you last saved in Crystal Report Designer.

Creating Custom Data Export Templates

1. Select **Tools > Setup Export** to customize report data export by setting up templates that determine the type of report data (session, sample, patient, results, etc.) is exported when you select that template.

Too		۱
	Customize Report	
	Setup Export	
	Export Data	

2. The **Export Data Setup** dialog box is displayed, allowing you to select the name of the export template, the fields and options to be included, and the field order you want for the template. Select check boxes on the left to select category, fields and options. On the right side of the dialog box, drag and drop the fields, or hold CTRL and press the Up/Down arrow keys to change the order.

HLA Fusion* 2.0	💫 Export Data Setup		_ 🗆 🗙
Export Name: Image to 20 characters) Select field//options: Charge output order:	HLA Fusion [™] 2.0 ● ●		
	HLA Fusion* 2.0 Export Name: (Limited to 20 characters) Select fields/option: # Patient # Sample # Catalog Detail # Session # Possible Aldele Code # Suppress column header in CSV © Suppress column header in CSV © Suppress column header in CSV @ Other Assigned allele code in 2 digits sero format in one column # Assigned allele code in 2 digits sero format in one column # Assigned allele code in 2 digits sero format in two columns - without class columns # # # # <tr< th=""><th>Change output order:</th><th>Select All Deselect All Save Delete Close</th></tr<>	Change output order:	Select All Deselect All Save Delete Close
	A ONE LAMBDA		

3. When you are done, click the **Save** button. The new template is added to available export templates from the **Tools > Export Data** menu.



Reports

4. When you are ready to export data, first select all the sessions you want to include from the available list. Then, select **Tools > Export Data**, and select one of the templates. The **Export Data** dialog box is displayed.

cpurt Data	100			5 March 191	
Save in:	export 🖸		× (0 0 🕫 🗉	•
My Recent Documents Desktop	Fusion Deta.	xmi			
My Computer	File game:	Fusion Data		~	Save
My Network	Save as type:	XML format		~	Cancel
		South Lawrence			

5. Select the format for the exported data—XML, CSV or Text. The exported data file is saved by default in C:\OLI Fusion\data\export. You can change where these files are saved by modifying the *Interface* path (see *Setting HLA Fusion Research Default URLs and Directory Paths*, p. 132).

Creating Custom Reports

Certain report types allow you to customize the types of fields to include.

- **Note:** For Molecular Custom or Antibody Custom reports, you must make sure the *Free 3 of 9 Extended* font is installed on your computer—otherwise, the barcode is not recognized. If needed, you can download this font for free at http://www.free-barcode-font.com/.
- 1. To create a custom report, select a report type containing the word "Custom" in its name (e.g., *Molecular Custom*, under the **Generic Typing** report type menu).
- 2. Click the **Setup** button in the Report Option section of the window. The **Custom Report Setup** window is displayed, allowing you to customize report content by selecting from various categories and fields.

pe or enter the report name".	Save
Lab Information	Allele Pars Assignment Cancel
Approved By	Allele Code Assignment
	V Suggested Allele Codes
Patient Info	Suggested Serology
Sample ID/Local ID 🔽 BarCode	V Suggested Allele Pairs
Z Sample Session Info	Dither Assignment
7 Saved/Confirmed Info	Force False
More Testing Needed False Rins/Ambiguity Exists	Test Beactions
✓ Test Notes	Positive Beads/Wells Summary
Nomenclature Date	P Dose Reaction Beads
NMDP/Local code update date	To the back
Z Eutoff Summary	Vest Details
7 SSO Graph	Fon M Recognition Site Specificity Check All
Gelimane (SSP onki)	Check All UpCheck All



Molecular Custom setup



- 3. Enter a name or select one from the drop-down list.
- 4. Select the check box next to each field you want to include in this report.

Note: To include all related fields, you can click the Check All button to select all the fields in the category.

5. Click the Save button to save the custom report setup you have just selected.

Sample Summary

The Sample Summary feature lists multiple samples and their typing results.

- Select samples using the **Reports** window.
- Click the **Sample Summary** button. The **Sample Summary** window is displayed; it contains two tabs— **Molecular** and **Antibody**.

🔊 Sample Summar	1															
Molecular Antibody				~												
Bulletin	Council Marrie	More		A	C.1.1.10			Class I		. (Class II			. 3	MIC	
Patenta	sample mame	Test	TestUate	SessionU	LatalogiU	+/-	PRA%	Specificity	+/-	PRA%	Specificit	y	+/-	PRA%	Specificity	Hemaika
	real		01/11/2008	0407LS1A004_001_ID32	L\$1A01_001_00	Neg	0	Negative							1	Background Negative Sample NC Raw =

Molecular Typing Sample Summary

Selected antigen typing records are displayed on the Molecular tab of the Sample Summary screen. You can view typing information in a condensed format, as well as display more details for any sample.

- 1. Select samples using the **Reports** window.
- 2. Click the **Sample Summary**. The default tab is **Molecular**.
- 3. Select an option from the Select Type of Data to Display drop-down list.

The window displayed depends on the option selected.

olecular Antibody						48			
Select Type of Data to Displa	w Support	ed NMDP/Other Code)	*					
6	Comple	ete	2-3	200		wenxia	ng1 tao1		12346
MoreTest	>	tai	-	8	Q				
FalseRxn Remarks	1080	95340	POBI	POAL	DVB1	DPAI	MICA	MICE	
	Comple	ete	_	-					
MoreTest	>	80	3	3	韻				
FalseRan Remarks	1080	DRB3101	JU Den	DQAL	0531	DPAI	MICA	MICE	
	Comple	ele		100	1011		1976		-
MoreTest	>	m	2	8	Ø				
FalseRan Remarks	1000	DR84'01	DWH 02	DOU	DPB1	DPA1	No.	ACCB	
	Comple	ete	22_15	122	1000				-
MoreTect	>	w	Br	8	Ø				
FalseRxn Remarks	10.80	DRB3*02	BNTG S	PCAI	DPEI	DPAI	MICA	MICE	
	Comple	ete							_
MoreTest	>	80	3	8	損				
FalseRan Remarks	0201	DRB4'01	DWH B	DOAL	0731	IN EG	MICA	MCB	
	and the second		nette i Moltik					2010	

- 4. Click the **Export** button to export the displayed data as an Excel file. Click the **DNA** button to export molecular specificities as an Excel file.
- 5. Click the **Close** button in the upper right corner of the window to close and return to the **Reports** window.

Antibody Screening Sample Summary

Any selected antibody screening records are displayed on the Antibody tab of the Sample Summary screen. You can view screening information in a condensed format, as well as display more details for any sample.

- 1. Select samples using the **Reports** window.
- 2. Click the Sample Summary button Sample Summary.
- 3. Click the **Antibody** tab.

Sample Summ															
Molecular Antibody															
		More						Class I	T		Class II			MIC	
PatientID	Sample Name	Test	TestDate	SessionID	CatalogID	+/-	2	Specificity	+/-	2	Specificity	+/-	*	Specificity	Remark:
	10-vd berg	11.15	06/15/2009	012606_LS12_L9_E0869	L\$1A04-NC6_001_	Pos	20	1							NC Raw >=1500.
	11-groen		06/15/2009	012606_L512_L9_E069	LS1A04-NC6_001_	Pos	13	1			1		1		Low NC Raw Value.
	12-drost		06/15/2009	012606_LS12_L9_E-869	LS1/404-NC6_001_	Pos	60	1			3	9.			a
	13-Aviuman	TR	06/15/2009	012606_LS12_L9_E0869	L\$1A04-NC6_001_	Pos	11	1			8	8			Low NC Raw Value.
	14-lekstompetity		06/15/2009	012606_LS12_L9_E069	LS1A04-NC6_001_	Pos	28	1			1	2		1	
	15-herber (14-12)		06/15/2009	011606_L312_L9_E069	L\$1A04-NC6_001_	Pos	53	1			3			-	3
	17-Iranken	1 13	06/15/2009	012606_LS12_L9_E069	LS1A04-NO5_001_	Neg	0	1			1	8		3	Low NC Raw Value
	18-kiemps (06-01-05)	5 1 1	06/15/2009	012606_LS12_L9_E0669	LS1/404-NC6_001_	Pos	94				1	£	-	-	
	19-van kryden		06/15/2009	012606_L312_L9_E969	LS1A04-NC6_001_	Pos	93	1			8				2
	1-m brouwer	TR	06/15/2009	012606_LS12_L9_E0669	LS1A04-NC6_001_	Pas	14	1			8	8			Low NC Raw Value
	20 p brouwer	1 1	06/15/2009	012606_LS12_L9_E060	LS1/404-NC6_001_	Pos	3	1			1		1		
	21-heugten		06/15/2009	012606 L312 L9 E969	LS1A04-NC6_001_	Neg	0	1			8	2			2
	220801	1 13	06/03/2009	020404TE2L52PRA_007_1	LIS2PRANCE_011_			-	Pos	40		1			2
	223816		06/03/2009	020404TE2LS2PEA_007_I	LS2PRANCE_011_				Neg	0	1	2			NC Bead has a Raw Value higher than all
	223006		06.03/2009	020404TX2LS2PEA_007_1	LS2PRANCE_011_			12	Neg	0	1	8			2
	220011	111	06/03/2009	020404TE2L52PEA_007_1	LS2PRANCE_011_			4	Pos	6	1	8		-	
	223E05		06.03/2009	020404TE2LS2PEA_007_I	LS2PRANCE_011_				Pos	31	1		1		
	22-anizi		06/15/2009	012606 LS12 L9 E469	LS1A04-NC6_001_	Pos	2	1			3	2			2
	23-41omp:(29-12)		06/15/2009	012606_LS12_L9_E069	LS1A04-NC6_001_	Pas	74	4			1	8			
	24-bekema		06/15/2009	012606_LS12_L9_E0669	LS1/404-NC6_001_	Pos	34				1	2			Low NC Raw Value.
	25-cratez		06/15/2009	011606 LS12 L9 E469	LS1A04-NC6_001_	Pos	94	1			1	2			2
	2-sumpt	113	06/15/2009	012606_LS12_L9_E069	LS1A04-NO5_001_	Pas	88				8	2		-	
	3-abserum	1 1	06/15/2009	012606_LS12_L9_E9669	LS1/404-NC6_001_	Pos	1	852.Cw6							
	6-jaegerman		06/15/2009	012606 LS12 L9 E9669	LS1A04-NC6_001_	Poz	26	A2,A30,Cw10,A6			3	2			2
	7-den haiting	1 13	06/15/2009	012606_LS12_L9_E0669	LS1A04-NC6_001_	Pas	33	B8201 A29, Dw1							
	8-fueber(08-12)	2 1 8	06/15/2009	012606 L312 L9 E9669	L\$1A04-NC8_001_	Pos	22	1				2	1	-	Low NC Raw Value.
	3-veldhuzen		06/15/2009	012606_LS12_L9_ID069	LS1A04-NC6_001_	Pos	72	14			1	8.			Low NC Raw Value
	blank I	10.15	06/15/2009	012606 LS12 L9 E469	LS1/04-NC6_001_	Pos	33	Cw1.88201 A31.			1 3	21			Low Bead Count.
	black2		06/15/2009	011606 L312 L9 E0609	LS1A04-NC6_001_	Pos	14	851,867,855,Cw			8				Low Bead Count Low NC Raw Value.
	blank0		06/15/2009	012606_L012_L9_E0069	LSTAD4-NC6_001_	Pos	52	1			1				Low Bead Count
	LSNC	1.1.15	06/15/2009	012606_LS12_L9_E-869	LS1/404-NC6_001_	Neg	0	4			1 3				2
	LSNC	2118	06.03/2009	020206_km11_E0380	LSM12_012_01	Neg	-		Neg	-	1	2			10 / 10 / 10 / 10 / 10 / 10 / 10 / 10 /
	LINC		06/03/2009	020404TX2L52PRA_007_I	LS2PRANCE_011_			(4)	Neg	0	1				
	112	111	06/03/2009	020204 lm11 ID380	LSM12 012 01	Pos	-	1	Neg						Low Bead Court

- 4. Click the **Export** button to export the displayed data as an Excel file. Click the **DNA** button to export molecular specificities as an Excel file.
- 5. Click the **Close** button in the upper-right of the window to close and return to the **Reports** window.

View Records

The View Records feature presents typing results and analysis details for each sample selected. Sample information is shown for one sample at a time. From the View Records menu, you can view screening and typing records individually.

- 1. Select data records using the **Reports** window.
- 2. Click the **View Records** button View Records
- 3. Use the arrow buttons to navigate through samples.

empl ocal I est Pr otes:	elD: 10-w D: os: 11 (C : NC R	1 berg :2) aw >=1500.			Se Ca Te	ession II stalog IE est Date	0: 012 h: LS1 : Jun	606_L A04-N 15, 20	.812_L1 IC8_001 009	0_ID869 1_02			HLA Oper	Locus: ator: re Test	Singl	e Antiş	jen I				<	< > /iew Anah Close	
	Class	Overall	ii.	%SA	As	tibody	mt		Possi	ble 20	NC Bea	ıd	_										_
•	1	Positive		20	-				-		001												
	-			-	-				-		-												
est	Configurat	Threshold	848	SAR	544	SAT	MC.	-	D/C	0.04	<i>r</i>	For	w da	1	eval		Evoluti	la dia	-				
	Class I	XS	3	20	32	34	1514.4		9485 13	6.26	329	Bas	eLine	4	Sero	-	-	no ringi	-				
	Class II		-			-	(null)		(null)	(null													
*	MC	•	-			-	(null)	_	(null)	(null				-			-		_				1
pito	pe Analysis		70				_	_		Tail	Analysi	9						_		10	_		_
,	Class	A66	2	0	23	20.21	_		-		Clas	s 5	ipec.	Avg	TP	FP	EN	TN	Valu	, 550	clus :	Strength	
	1	A31	1	0	21	42.26				•	1	A	11	1007.69	2	16	0	72	0.3	100	¢)	
_	Ľ.	-	-	-	-		_				1	A	68	1966.52	2	16	0	72	0.3	100)	_
sst E	Jetails							_	_		_												
	Bead	Raw	No	mal	1	Batio		Ban		Count	\$	pecificit	ly				Molec	cular Sp	ecificity				
-	002	9485.13	(nul	9 D	1	null		(null)		261	1												
	004	1598.31	51	74	i	185		4		158	A	2					A*020	it.					
	006	1555.48	0		C	162		1		134	A	2					A*020	16					
	007	1628.09	50.	63	(165		4		134	A	3					A*030	11					
	800	1852.71	336	8.31	1	1.26		6		157	A	11					A*110	1					
	009	1922.66	336	192	(173		6		157	A	11					A*110	12					
	010	1965.66	408	1.97	(19		6		173	A	Z3					A*230	п					
	011	1688.33	150	0.97	0	1.9		4		178	A	24					A*240	12					
	012	1372.23	0		-	186		1		186	A	24					A*240	13					
	013	15/1.02	0		-	147		1		175	A	25					A*250	1					
	014	177312	33.	14	-	105		6		100	A	26					A 200	11					
	015	1251.65	0		-	162		1		196	~	29					A*290	12					
	017	1935.96	400	168	1	1.13		6		184	A	10					A*300	1					
	018	1455.21	0	1000	0	164		1		146	A	30					A*300	2					
	019	2142.26	591	.71	1	.03		8		169	A	31					A*310	1					
	020	1526.48	0		(0.05		1		167	A	32					A*320	11					
	021	1904.27	363	3.78	(199		6		143	A	33					A*330	1					
	022	1478.94	0		0	164		1		180	A	33					A*330	13					
	024	1934.68	255	1.24	9	148		6		164	A	54					A*340	12					
	025	1585.45	400 P	100	-	162		1		216	A	12					A 360	1					
	027	2255.51	623	195	2	167		8		217	4	32					A*660	11					
	028	2384 92	769	163	0	176		8		185	A	36					A*660	12					
	029	1861.24	265	.46	i	1.66		6		202	A	58					A*680	1					
	030	2071.8	375	609	(3.47		6		216	A	58					A*680	12					
	031	1426.91	0		(164		1		144	A	59					A*690	11					
	032	1466.11	0		(1.97		1		202	A	74					A*740	п					
	033	1555.05	7.2	3	(1.76		1		204	A	30					A*800	11					
	034	1690.37	100	.36	(163		4		197	B	7,8w6					B*070	12					
	035	1380.24	0		0	168		1		208	B	5.Bwb					8.080	Л					
	036	1584.36	0		9	1.37		-		210	0	J.Bw4					81130	12					
	037	1281.68	0		-	1.79		-		136	B	54,8W6					8 140 P*140	12					
	039	1118.57	0		2	177		1		114	0	12 Rund					81150	11					
		1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1									- D	-m.arriQ					ar 1.20						
	040	1197.8	0		(149		1		104	B	75,8w6					B*150	12					

Reports

4. Use the arrow buttons to navigate through samples.

5. Click the **View Analysis** button <u>View Analysis</u> to open the analysis window for the current sample. The analysis window can be resized.



6. Click the **Close** button **Close** to close the window and return to the **Reports** window.

Patient Info

You can view patient records associated with selected samples by clicking on the Patient Info tab. Patient information can also be viewed by patient ID using the Patient look up function of the Patient Management menu. From the **Patient Info** menu, you can view Patient/Donor records.

To view patient information, you must select a sample(s). You can view, but not edit the displayed information.

- 1. Select sessions or samples from the **Reports** window that have an associated Patient/Donor ID.
- 2. Click the **Patient Info** button Patient Info. The Patient/Donor information card is displayed.

Patient/Donor In	do .		
Patient/Donor ID*	1	Family ID	AIRLINES
First Name *	PETER	Last Name*	AIRLINES
Middle Name		Bethdate	2/18/1920
SSN	111-11-1212	Gender	🕘 Male 🗌 Female 🔘 UNK
Ethnicity	Amerindian	CategoryGrp	Human Animal
Address	2089 PETER ROAD		
City	PETER	Region	WESTERN
State/Province	CA	Postal Code	90010
Country	USA	Phone	(818) 555-1212
Email Address	PETER@WIRLINES.NET	Mobile	(818) 555-1212
Employer	AIRLINES	Work	(818) 555-1212
		Fax	(818) 555-1212
Donor Center ID	DONOR 1	Disease	EXCELLENT
Division	DIVISION 1	BloodType	0
HospitalName	PATIENT HOSPITAL	Rh	Patient/Donor Patient
Spouse Info			
Spouse Name	ANNA	BloodType	0
Emergency Con	act Info		
Name	ANNA	Phone	(010) 555-1212

- 3. Click the **Test Info** tab to see that information for the current patient/donor. If more than one information card is displayed, use the arrow buttons to navigate through the patient records.
- 4. Click the **Close** button \boxtimes in the upper right corner to close and return to the **Reports** window.

Report Types

There are several report types available. Although most report types are listed in this section, please note that because new reports are sometimes added between updates to this user manual, you may see more reports listed in the software.

- **Patient** (all patients in the Fusion Research database)
 - Patient Summary (summary of both typing and antibody testing results associated with a patient ID)
 - *Patient Typing for Batch* (typing summary report over different loci for a set of samples, based on a selected session)
 - *Patient Custom* (you select the type of patient data to include for the selected samples)
- Generic Typing (typing data from analyzed LABType and MicroSSP samples)
 - *Molecular Custom* (you select the type of molecular data to include for a set of samples)
 - *Custom Typing Results by Sample* (you select the type of molecular data to include for selected samples)
 - *Allele Summary* (typing report of possible allele pairs and assigned allele code results for a set of samples)
 - *Allele Code* (typing report of possible allele codes and assigned allele code results for a set of samples)
 - *Molecular Typing Summary* (typing report of the possible allele code, assigned allele code, assigned allele pairs, assigned serology, and other assignments for a set of samples)
- **MicroSSP** (data from analyzed Micro SSP samples)
 - *SSP Report* (detailed typing report for Micro SSPTM tests that may be customized)
- **LCT** (data from analyzed LCT samples)
 - *LCT Specificity* (test details of a single sample on an LCT analysis tray)

Chapter 8 Sample Management

Sample management lets you to enter and export sample information to allow for faster analysis and data management. Sample information can exist in the database without any analysis data associated with it.

Sample Lists

In HLA FusionTM *Research*, sample lists are an easy way to input a large list of sample IDs and other sample information into the database for use in analysis sessions. Sample lists may be in .xls, CSV or .txt file format. From the Sample List Import menu, you can import sample lists or edit sample lists prior to importation.

Importing Sample Lists

Sample lists are an easy way to input an extended list of sample ID's and other sample information into the database for use in analysis sessions. The information contained in the sample lists must be in one of the formats described in the section *Information Formats for Sample Lists*, p. 91.

1. From the Main Menu, select **Sample > Import Sample List**.

Data Danaste LADNessae Data Canada Datast Info Dodfa Indias Lisla Eva	
ALA 承受 Lookes das salde Facetard Fore dates hep dat ALA 承受 Lookes das salde Facetard Fore dates hep dat	
ect Sample List to Import Search Sample List	
List Format Sample List (csv)	
Sample Lid with Packist (sw) Pack Lid: New Standard yet ID Pack Lid: New Standard Data (SDF)	Remove № from SampleID Autogenerate Local ID Use Sample D as Patient ID
Pack List: Old Standard 11	Import All
le List Details	
Import Order Location Sample Local ID Category Turnaround DCN Patient ID Date Test List Name	

- 2. Click the Search Sample List button; browse for the sample list to be imported; and click Open.
- 3. Type a name in the List ID field, and, if necessary, select a Lab code or Contact ID from the drop-down list.
- 4. Confirm sample information, and edit if needed. Click to clear the check boxes of any samples you do not want to import.
- 5. Click **Import List** to import the selected sample lists.
- 6. Click **Close** to return to the Main Menu.

Information Formats for Sample Lists

The information inside a sample list you import in to HLA Fusion Research must be in one of the following formats.

New packing list format

This file gives the fields (in this order):

```
ShipmentLoc(1 - 13),SampleIDName(0198-0398-0),SampleType(AB, DR or AB/DR),
TurnaroundTime(14, 21 or 14AB/21DR),DCN (3 digit).
```

example line:

1 - 13,0198-0398-0,AB/DR,14AB/21DR,074

Pack list: Old Standard 'X' samples

This file gives the fields (in this order):

ShipmentLoc,SampleIDName,SampleType (1, 2, 3..., and an 'X' for AB/DR samples),DCN example line:

1 - 12,0287-7867-8,X,074

Old packing list format, '11' for AB/DR samples

This file lists (in this order):

ShipmentLoc, SampleIDName, SampleType (1, 2, 3..., and an '11' for AB/DR samples), DCN

example line:

1 - 15,0287-0779-2,11,074

Comma delimited format

Each field is separated by commas. The use of quotes around a field is optional, and is required only if the contents of the field use a comma, which could confuse field separation. This file lists (in this order):

ShipmentLoc, SampleIDName, SampleType (AB, DR or AB/DR), TurnaroundTime (14, 21 or 14AB/21DR), DCN

example line:

```
"1","12","0287-7867-8","AB/DR","14AB/21DR","074"
```

Tab delimited format

Each field is separated by a tab. This file lists (in this order):

```
ShipmentLoc, SampleIDName, SampleType (AB, DR or AB/DR), TurnaroundTime (14, 21 or 14AB/21DR), DCN
```

example line:

1 12 0287-7867-8 AB/DR 14AB/21DR 074

SDF format

Each field is separated by commas. This file lists (in this order):

BoxSlot, DonarID, SampleType (AB, DR or AB/DR), TurnaroundTime (14, 21 or 14AB/21DR), DonarCenter

example line:

```
1120287-7867-8AB,DR14,21074
```

Local/Sample/Patient ID Only

This file is a Microsoft Excel file. This file lists (in this order):

Row 1: Column Title "Local" and "Sample" and "Patient" Column A: LocalID Column B: SampleIDName (required) Column C: PatientIDName example:

	A	В	С
1	Local	Sample	Patient
2	local1	sample1	patient1
3	local2	sample2	patient2
4	local3	sample3	patient3
5	local4	sample4	patient4
6	local5	sample5	patient5
7	local6	sample6	patient6
8	local7	sample7	patient7
	local8	sample8	patient8

Viewing and Editing Sample Information

Sample information can be edited, but associated patient IDs cannot—only new patient IDs can be added.

1. From the Main Menu, select **Sample > Manage Sample Info**.



Figure 8-1: Manage Sample Window

- 2. Use the filters to find samples, and click **View Sample**.
- 3. Edit sample information.
- Note: You can rename a sample by modifying the name in the Sample ID field. Sample IDs are listed alphanumerically, with all IDs beginning with numbers listed first.
- 4. Click **Save** to save. Or, click **Delete** to delete the sample.
- 5. Click **Close** to return to the Main Menu.
- Note: You are not allowed to delete a sample that is part of a session that has already been analyzed.

Test Lists

A Test List is a list of Sample IDs that can be used repeatedly to automatically write the sample IDs into a session analysis that can be read by Luminex[®]. It is a useful tool when you have a group of samples to be run on multiple tests.

From the Test List menu you can:

- Create new Test Lists
- View and edit existing Test Lists
- Delete Test Lists
- Export Test Lists to a .txt file

Creating New Test Lists

Test Lists must be created in the order in which the samples are to be analyzed.

1. From the Main Menu, select **Samples > Manage Test List**.

	CreateEditTestList			
	Select Test List Or			
	Enter new Test List Name Continuo >> Desite List Case			
	Cited Select relief			
	Search Field Value			
Barryon Name Local D Add 22 Remone Remone All Remone All Remone All Same Local D Remone All Remone	Sample ID 👻 *			
	Sample Name Local ID Patient ID			
		Add >>		Move Up
		Remove		Move Down
		Remove All		
Save Export Patresh				
Save Export Petresh				
Save Export Refresh				
Save Export Petresh				
Save Export Petresh				
Save Export Petresh				
Save Export Petresh				
Save Export Petresh				
Save Export Petresh				
Save Export Petrosh				
Save Export Refresh				
Save Export Refresh				
Save Export Refresh				
Save Export Refresh				
Save Export Refresh				
Save Export Refresh				
			Save Export Refresh	

- 2. Type in a name for the new test list, and click **Continue>>**.
- 3. Search for samples to add to the test list using the search fields, and click Apply to view search results.
- 4. Highlight samples, and click **Add>>** to add them to the test list.
- 5. Click **Save** to save the new test list.
- 6. Click **Close** to return to the Main Menu.

Viewing and Editing Existing Test Lists

Test Lists can be viewed or edited at any time.

- 1. From the Main Menu, select Manage Samples > Manage Test List.
- 2. Use the drop-down list to select a test list, and click **Continue**>>.
- 3. Click **Delete List** to permanently delete the selected test list.
- 4. Click **Close** to return to the Main Menu.

Deleting Existing Test Lists

Deleting a test list removes the list from the database, but the sample IDs are not removed or changed in the database.

- 1. From the Main Menu, select Manage Samples > Manage Test List.
- 2. Use the pull-down menu to select a test list, and click **Continue>>**.
- 3. Add, remove or move samples as desired.
- 4. Click **Save** to save the new test list.
- 5. Click **Close** to return to the Main Menu.

Exporting Test Lists

Test lists can be exported for use outside of HLA Fusion Research only as a .txt files.

- 1. From the Main Menu, select Manage Samples > Manage Test List.
- 2. Use the pull-down menu to select a test list, and click **Continue>>**.
- 3. Click **Export** to export test list details to a .txt file.
- 4. If prompted to save the test list before export, click Yes to save and continue.
- 5. Select a location to save the test list and enter a file name for it.
- 6. Click Save.
- 7. When prompted to create a Luminex Patient List input, click No.
- 8. Click **Close** to close and return to the Main Menu.

Luminex Lists

HLA Fusion *Research* can create a Luminex List from a new or existing test list. You can use this list to quickly add information, such as sample ID, before you create a Luminex CSV output file. From the **Create/Edit Test List** window you can create a Luminex list

Creating Luminex Lists

Luminex List files can be edited after they are exported, but changes are not reflected in the test list from which they were created.

- 1. From the Main Menu, select **Samples > Manage Test List**.
- 2. Use the pull-down menu to select a test list, and click Continue>>.
- 3. Click **Export** to export.
- 4. Select a location to save the test list to and enter a file name.
- 5. Click Save.
- 6. When prompted to create Luminex List input, click Yes.
- 7. Click **OK** on the confirmation message to return to the **Test List** window.
- 8. Click **Close** to return to the Main Menu.

Create Sample Worklists

Note: The Sample Worklist feature is available *only* if you have SQL 2005 and above installed.

Sample Worklist functionality in HLA Fusion *Research* software gives you the flexibility to assign various tests to selected samples. This information is used in designing plates for Luminex processing.

Sample Worklist							
Search samples Sample ID Local ID	Sample dra From: 4/19/2009	wn between To: 5/19/2009	Location		Clear Fi	ilter	Search
SampleID	LocalD	Date	Location	_	LABScreen	Tests	
1			ļ		LSM		
1107			ļ			_	_
2			Į		PRA I	PRA II	🗖 PRA I+II
3						V 15 54	
324			<u> </u>		LO OAT	10 LO 0A	
5	cfbftuftuu		<u> </u>		🔽 LS Single	T 🔽 LS Sin	gle II
6			<u> </u>		- LARType To	ete	
7			1				F .
8			1	i	LA	ы	ЦС
9068					🗖 DRB1	🗖 BW4	🗖 B7
A*0108							
A*2603					_	_	
AP630					DP	DRB34	5
ARA							
BCK							
bjvdhd							
bivis				-		Save	Close

- 1. Select Sample > Create Sample Worklist from the Fusion Research main menu.
- 1. Use the search criteria to specify the samples that you would like to assign tests to, and click Search.
- 2. Select one session, or select multiple sessions (by holding and dragging the mouse). The selected samples are highlighted.
- 3. Now assign one or more tests by selecting the check boxes for the tests you want to run on the samples (listed under **LABScreen Tests** and/or **LABType Tests**).
- 4. Once you are done assigning tests to all the selected samples, click Save to save the worklist.

Create Plate Design

Note: The Plate Designer feature is available *only* if you have SQL 2005 and above installed.

Plate Designer functionality in HLA Fusion *Research* software gives you the flexibility to organize and to plan your samples in the plate format that is ready for processing through the Luminex device. You must first have created a sample worklist (see *Create Sample Worklists*, p. 97).

Plate Designer Plate Name: Assay type: LABScreen Search by sample Search by	Test list	
Test name: Sample ID	Sample List	Test assigned between From: To: 4/14/2010 V 5/14/2010 V Search
SampleID SampleLis	t Date	X
		Tests assigned:
		Optimize Export to Luminex Report Save Close

- 1. Select **Sample > Create Plate Designer** from the Fusion Research main menu.
- 2. Select the Assay type.
- 3. Select the **New Plate** button option if you want to create a new plate; otherwise, select **Edit Plate** to change an existing plate.
- 4. Click Go.
- 5. For a new plate:
 - Enter an unique plate name
 - Use the following search criteria to search and select the samples you want to add to plate for testing:
 - Test name
 - Sample name
 - Sample collection date (From and To date)
- 6. Click **Search** to display a list of samples that match your criteria.
- 7. Select samples (one or many at a time), and use the left << button to assign these samples to a well in the plate. Repeat this until you have completed your plate design.
- 8. Click **Save** to save your plate design.
- 9. Click **Print** if you want to print your plate design.
Chapter 9 Patient Information

HLA FusionTM *Research* can store patient information and associate sample IDs with patients and donors. You can store all typing and screening information in one location for each patient.

Note: Please verify all data you import as HLA Fusion Research performs minimal data validation upon import.

Importing Patient/Donor Lists

After creating a Patient/Donor List, you can import the information into HLA Fusion *Research*. (See *Creating Patient/Donor Lists*, p. 106 for guidelines on creating a patient list.)

1. From the Main Menu, select **Patient Info > Import Patient List**.



- 2. Select the check box in the Import column for each patient you want to import.
- 3. Click the **Import** button to import checked patients.
- 4. Click **Close** to return to the main menu.
- Note: The HLA Fusion Research system checks the patient/donor lists you attempt to import to verify that all characters contained in the data are supported by Fusion Research. If your list contains unsupported characters, a message is displayed to let you know, and the list is not imported. For a list of characters to avoid using, see *Special Characters to Avoid in Filenames*, p. 136.

Newly imported patient records display alleles in the new nomenclature format. Existing patient records display alleles with the existing allele format.

Managing Patient/Donor Records

The Patient/Donor Management menu allows you to manage one record at a time. From the Patient/Donor Management menu you can:

- Add new patient/donor records
- Search existing patient/donor records
- Edit patient/donor records
- Associate patient/donor IDs with sample IDs
- Associate patient and donor records
- Print, export and archive patient records

Adding New Patient/Donor Records

You can add patient information using the Patient/Donor Information menu. This is the best option for adding a small number of patient records. To quickly add a large number of patient records to HLA Fusion *Research*, see *Creating Patient/Donor Lists*, p. 106.

1. From the Main Menu, select **Patient Info > Manage Patient**.

	A Patient/Doner Info
Displays a list of patients/donors in the Fusion Research	General Info Test Info Search Triter new patient/donor information or search patient/donor to edit Enforce ISBT Iomat for Patient/Donor ID Archnved
database to select from	Paient/Denor ID* Lead Family ID First Name ** Bithdan Latt Name ** Gender SSN Gender Addess Midde Name Bithdap Gender City Category Group Nodess Region Div State Province Carly Wak State Province Midde Danal Addess Far Email Addess Far Division Biod Type Norice Info Dana Center ID Division Paierz/Doror Hospital Name Biod Type Stoure Info Biod Type Proce Name Biod Type Biod Type Plone
Tools to manage	
nationt (depart information	K Z X X Add New Evenue Save Belete Print Translate Alleles Close
patient/ uonor information	

- 2. Enter an ID in the **Patient/Donor** field.
- 3. Enter patient/donor information. Fields with an asterisk (*) are required.
- 4. Click **Save** to save the data.
- 5. Click **Close** to close and return to the main menu.

Lookup Patient/Donor Records

This option allows you to browse through records or search for specific ones.

- 1. From the Main Menu, select **Patient Info > Manage Patient**.
- 2. Enter a patient/donor ID and click **Load** to display patient information. Or, click **Select Patient** to browse patient records. Highlight a patient record and click **OK** to display.

Editing Patient/Donor Records

All patient/donor information (except patient/donor ID) can be edited.

- 1. From the Main Menu, select **Patient Info > Manage Patient**.
- 2. Select a patient/donor record.
- 3. Edit patient/donor information. Fields marked with an asterisk (*) are required.
- 4. Click **Save** to save data.
- 5. Click **Close** to return to the Main Menu.

Associating a Patient/Donor ID with Sample IDs

A Sample ID cannot be associated with more than one patient or donor record, but a patient or donor record can have more than one sample ID associated with it.

- 1. From the Main Menu, select **Patient Info > Manage Patient**.
- 2. Select a patient/donor record.
- 3. Click the **Test Info** tab.

Patient/Donor				View	Sample	Summa	iy .			
Associate Sample IDs					Associate Donor IDs					
LA Assignments Molecular										
A B Bw	с	DRB1	DRB3	DRB4	DRB5	DQB1	DQA1	DPB1	DPA1	
	-								1	
her 4ICA MICB	KIR									
Nbody Assignments Class I Antibody Specificity										
Class II Antibody Specificity										
MIC Antibody Specificity										
Unacceptable Antigens										
Acceptable Antigens										
all and a second se										

- 4. Click the Associate Sample IDs button.
- 5. In the *Patient/Donor Sample Association* window, highlight a sample ID and click > to add it to the **Patient/Donor Sample List**. (Click < to remove a highlighted sample ID from the list.)

- 6. Click **Save** to save the data.
- 7. Click **OK** to return to the patient record.
- 8. Click **Close** to return to the main menu.

Associating Patient and Donor Records

A Patient ID can be associated with more than one donor record, and a donor ID can have more than one patient record associated with it.

- 1. From the Main Menu, select **Patient Info > Manage Patient**.
- 2. Click the **Test Info** tab.
- 3. Click the Associate Donor IDs button.
- 4. In the **Patient/Donor Sample Association** window, highlight a Donor ID and click > to add it to the **Patient/Donor Sample List**. (Click < to remove a highlighted Donor ID from the list.)
- 5. Click **Save** to save data.
- 6. Click **OK** to return to patient record.
- 7. Click Close to return to the Main Menu.

Printing Patient/Donor Records

HLA Fusion Research prints both Record Management tabs regardless of which tab is currently being viewed.

- 1. From the Main Menu, select Manage Patient > Manage Patient.
- 2. Select a patient/donor record.
- 3. Click **Print** to print.
- 4. Click **Close** to return to the Main Menu.

Exporting Patient/Donor Records

Patient/donor records can be exported individually to a CSV file. The file has the same format as a Patient List.

- 1. From the Main Menu, select **Manage Patient > Manage Patient**.
- 2. Select a patient/donor record.
- 3. Click **Export** to export.
- 4. Select a location to save the CSV file to and enter a file name.
- 5. Click Save.
- 6. Click **Close** to return to the Main Menu.

Archiving Patient/Donor Records

Archived patient/donor records are not available for reporting or associating. You can still view archived records and reactivate them by clearing the archive check box.

- 1. From the Main Menu, select Manage Patient > Manage Patient.
- 2. Click the **General Info** tab.
- 3. Select a patient/donor record.
- 4. From the Patient/Donor List window, select Archive from the drop-down Active/Archive list.
- 5. Click Save to save.
- 6. Click **Close** to return to the Main Menu.

Deleting Patient/Donor Records

Patient/donor records can be deleted through the Manage Patient menu option.

- 1. From the Main Menu, select **Manage Patient** > **Manage Patient**.
- 2. Click the **General Info** tab.
- 3. Select a patient/donor record Select a patient/donor record.
- 4. Click **Delete** to delete the patient/donor record from the Fusion Research database.
- 5. Click Save.

Creating Patient/Donor Lists

The following is an example of a patient list that can be created, and the guidelines for doing so. The patient list must be formatted for import via a program like Excel or Notepad, and saved as a Windows compatible CSV file (see *Importing Patient/Donor Lists*, p. 100). The first field/section must contain the names of the patient list fields, each separated by commas:

PatientIDName, CategoryGrp, FamilyID, FirstName, MiddleName, LastName, Ssn, Dob, Gender, Ethnici ty, Address, City, State, Region, Country, ZipCode, Email, Phone, WkPhone, Cellular, Fax, Employer, SpouseName, SpouseBloodType, EmergencyContact, EmrgncyTel, DCN, HospitalName, Division, BloodType, Disease, RhBloodType

Subsequent lines must contain the actual patient information separated by commas. If there is no information for the patient in a particular field, that field still requires a comma as a placeholder. The following is an example of a patient list created in Notepad.

PatientIDName, CategoryGrp, FamilyID, FirstName, MiddleName, LastName, Ssn, Dob, Gender, Ethni city, Address, City, State, Region, Country, ZipCode, Email, Phone, WkPhone, Cellular, Fax, Emplo yer, SpouseName, SpouseBloodType, EmergencyContact, EmrgncyTel, DCN, HospitalName, Division, BloodType, Disease, RhBloodType, PatientDonorFlg, Associated SampleIDs, Associated DonorIDs, HLA1_A, HLA2_A, HLA1_B, HLA2_B, HLA1_BW, HLA2_BW, HLA1_C, HLA2_C, HLA1_DRB1, HLA2_DRB 1, HLA1_DRB3, HLA2_DRB3, HLA1_DRB4, HLA2_DRB4, HLA1_DRB5, HLA2_DRB5, HLA1_DQB1, HLA2_DQB1, HLA2 1_DQA1, HLA2_DQA1, HLA1_DPB1, HLA2_DPB1, HLA3, HLA1_DRB5, HLA2_DRB5, HLA1_DQB1, HLA2_DRB5, HLA2 1_DQB1, HLA2_DQB1, HLA1_DQA1, HLA2_DQA1, HLA1_DPB1, HLA2_DPB1, HLA1_DPA1, HLA2_DPA1, HLA1_MIC A, HLA2_MICA, HLA1_MICB, HLA2_MICB, HLA_KIR, ClassI_AbSpec, ClassII_AbSpec, MIC_AbSpec, Unacc eptableAntigens, AcceptableAntigens, Notes, SHLA1_A, SHLA2_A, SHLA1_B, SHLA2_B, SHLA1_Cw, SHL A2_Cw, SHLA1_DR, SHLA2_DR, SHLA1_DR345, SHLA2_DR345, SHLA1_DQ, SHLA2_DQ, SHLA1_DP, SHLA2_DP, D onorType, IncludeInDonorPRA

Patient Antibody Tracking

You can track molecular and antibody typing information for each patient over a period of time. The information tracked is taken from the typing data stored in their Patient/Donor Info card and the antibody data in their analysis samples (LABScreen Single Antigen and LABScreen Singles) for the specified date range. Take the following steps to display graphs and data that track a patient's antibody data.

- 1. Make sure you have patient and donor information entered into HLA Fusion *Research*. If not, you can import it from a patient list and/or manually enter the data on the **Test Info** tab of the Patient/Donor Info card. Patient and donor records must be associated (see *Associating a Patient/Donor ID with Sample IDs*, p. 104).
- 2. Select **Patient Info > Ab Tracking**. The Antibody Tracking window is displayed:



- 3. Click the drop down arrow next to the **Patient ID** field to select from a list of patients stored in your Fusion Research database. The Molecular and Serological Typing fields are automatically filled with available data for the specified patient.
- 4. Select the start and end date range from which you want to view sample antigen data for this patient (click the drop down arrows in the date fields to display a calendar).
- 5. Click the **Find** button to display a list of samples for this patient that are within the specified date range.

Patient	t ID	cd86							
Molece Typing	ular I								5.12
Sero Typing	i.	A3, A11, B	51, B13,	Cw4, Cw1	2, DR4, I	DR1	5, DQ1, DQ1		< >
Date		19/05/2008	₩ To	19/05/2009		Find	Formula	Baseline	~
Include	Sa	mple Date	Sample	Index	Sample I	D	Final Assignm	ent	
	25/	08/2008	1		CD86L(2	2	Negative		
	01.4	09/2008	2		CD86M(Negative		
~	15/	09/2008	3		CD86N(1	A23,A24,B76		
	29/	09/2008	4		CD86P(2	A23,B81,A24,	B76,B48,B7	
	06/	10/2008	5		CD86 Q	C	A23,B81,A24,	B48,B7,B76	
	16/	10/2008	6		CD86R(1	A23,A24,B81	B76,B48	
-	254	00/0000	7		CD98LC		007		

- **Note:** To add final assignments to a sample, double-click in the **Final Assignment** column for the sample to display the analysis window and add the assignment. Also, only samples with a date can be included in this tracking. If the Sample Date column is empty for a sample, click on the empty Sample Date cell and use the pull-down date-finder to add a date.
- 6. Select the check box in the **Include** column for the sample(s) you want to include in the Ab tracking graphs and data. The graphs are displayed (to display a specific type of graph, click on the associated tab.
- 7. Select the check box for the antigen(s) you want to include in the tracking.



8. Select the formula to use for the graphs by clicking the drop down arrow in the **Formula** field (Default versus Raw). The formula can also be changed after the graphs are displayed if you want to compare the tracking with different formulas.



- **Note:** You can double-click on a graph to expand it, and there are right-click options available from each graph (see graphic above).
- 9. (*Optional*) You can add donor data, if desired, by using the drop-down arrow next to the Donor ID field to select from a list of donors in your Fusion Research database.

Donor ID	86		~	_(lonor ID	drop-dow	n lis	st	1
Molecula Typing	r					2			
ant to track	A3, A24, B51, B60,	Cw4, Cw12, DR4, DR11	, DQ1, DQ3	3		selec	t to i s II tr	nclude on acking	
antigens on Name	Track DSA Match	catalog ID	U DQA /	DPA	Data Tab	Antigen	^	Not Tested	antigens not test
BLS1AO4L	DT 2_ID305	LS1A04_002_00	45			Cw12		DQ1	with OLI test kits
BLS1 AO4L	DT 2_ID305	LS1A04_002_00	46	0		DR4		DQ3	
BLS1A04L	DT 2_ID313	LS1A04_002_00	36		Include	Allele			
BLS1A04L	DT 2 ID325	LS1A04 002 00	39			DRB1*0401	-		
10041	0T 2 ID 220	1.51.404.002.00	20		~	DRB1*0404			
JESTA04E	01 2 00 2 5	L31A04_002_00	30		Image: A state of the state	DRB1*0405	_		
BLS1A04L	DT 2_ID335	LS1A04_002_00	31			DRB1*0402			
BLS2A01L	DT 6_ID306	LS2A01_006_00	45			DRB1 40403	-		
BLS2A01L	DT 6_ID306	LS2A01_006_00	46		Include 🗸	Antigen	-		
			~	in		0.00			

- 10. (Optional) Select the check box next to **Track DSA** to track donor specific antigens. If this is selected and there are donor specific antigens that are not tested with OLI product kits, these are listed.
- 11. (Optional) Select the DQA/DPA check box to include these in Class II tracking.
- 12. Click the **Data Table** button to display a raw data table CSV file with the patient antigen signal over a period of time. The table can be printed or exported.

🕰 Antii	ody Tra	cking Inform	ation											- X
Patient	ID:	12346					Donor ID	:	patient1					
Molecu	Mecular Typing:						Molecula	r Typing :	A*0101, A*010 DRB1*3040, D DRB4*0101, D	2, B*1010, B RB1*0102, I RB4*0120, I	*3040, CW*2 DRB3*3333, DRB5*2020,	202, Cw*0101 DRB3*3334, DRB5*0606,	0, DQA1*101,	< >
Sero T	Sero Typing :		~ ~	Sero Typ	iing :						< >			
		Data Type :	Raw Data								DS/	A Export	Close	
Class I	Class II													
	Sample Index	Sample Date	Sample ID	A"0201 (A2)	A*0203 (A2)	A*0206 (A2)	A*3301 (A33)	A*3303 (A33)	B*5701 (B57)	B*5703 (B57)	A*3001 (A30)	A*3002 (A30)	A*6601 (A66)	Ą
۶.	1	3/20/2009	1	4856.24	9741.2	7692.91	6011.08	9292.97	4925.3	2323.26	10958	9312.46	3938.43	24

Chapter 10 **Profile Management**

HLA FusionTM *Research* tracks all changes to analysis data made by users and allows added data security with a two level analysis result confirmation (Save and Confirm). HLA Fusion *Research* also stores general laboratory information to be used on reports including multiple contract lab codes.

User Management

From the Profile main menu you can:

- Add new users
- Edit existing user profiles
- Change passwords
- Reset passwords
- Archive users

HLA Fusion Research uses two user levels for added security and control of typing and screening results:

Supervisor can	Lab Technician can
Modify all product configuration settings	Modify all product configuration settings—except to enable Auto Accept All and Computer Generated Serology for LABType and Micro SSP products
Save and Confirm analysis results	Analyze data and save analysis results

Supervisor can	Lab Technician can
Update reference files, such as catalogs and NMDP codes	(Only if authorized by the supervisor) - Update reference files, such as catalogs and NMDP codes
Archive catalogs	Archive catalogs
Modify and delete session and sample data	(Only if authorized by the supervisor) - Modify and delete session and sample data
Modify own & other user accounts	Modify own account only
Change the Lab Profile	Manage sample and patient information

Viewing the User List

The List User option displays a list of all users currently in the database, both active and retired. You can look up and select user profiles.

- 1. From the Main Menu, select **Profile > List User**.
- 2. Type in a name and click **Search** to search for current users.
- 3. Double click to the left of a user entry to view the profile.
- 4. Click **Close** to return to the main menu.

Adding New Users

Supervisors can add new supervisor or technician level users. Technicians cannot add new users. Fields marked with an (*) are required.

- 1. From the Main Menu, select **Profile > List User**.
- 2. Click Add User to add a new user.
- 3. Enter new user information. Select the Active check box under the Role field to activate the user account.

Note: If this is a lab tech profile and you want to allow reference file update and/or data management privileges for this user, select the appropriate check boxes.

4. Click **Save** to save the new user information and return to the main menu or click **Close** to discard changes and return to the main menu without saving.

Editing User Profiles

Supervisors can edit the user profile of any user. Technicians can only edit their own profiles. Fields marked with an asterisk (*) are required.

- 1. To edit your own profile, select **Profile > My Profile**. To select from a list of users to edit, select **Profile > List User** and double-click to the left of a user to select that profile.
- 2. Edit user information.
- 3. Click Save to save user information and return to the Main Menu.

or

Click Close to discard changes and return to the Main Menu without saving.

Changing Passwords

Supervisors can change passwords for any user, but they must have the user's old password. Technicians can change only their own passwords.

- 1. From the Main Menu, select **Profile > My Profile**.
- 2. In the user profile, click the **Change Password** button.
- 3. Enter the current and new passwords.
- 4. Click the **Save Password** button to change the password. Or, click **Close** to close and return to the main menu without changing the password.

Resetting Passwords

If a users lose or forget their password, HLA Fusion *Research* can reset the password. The new password is the same as the user's user name. Only Supervisors can reset a user's password.

- 1. From the Main Menu, select **Profile> List User** and select a user.
- 2. In the user profile, click the **Reset Password** button.
- 3. Click **Close** to return to the main menu.

Changing User Privileges

Only Supervisors can modify a user's privilege level.

- 1. From the main menu, select **Profile> List User** and double-click to the left of a user to open their profile.
- 2. In the user profile, select the check box next to either **Manage Data** or **Update Reference Files**, or both, to give the selected user privileges for those activities within the Fusion Research application.
- 3. Click **Close** to return to the Main Menu.

Inactivating Users

Supervisors can inactivate users who are no longer using HLA Fusion *Research*. User information is still stored in the database, but the user is not able to log into the program.

- 1. From the Main Menu, select **Profiles > List User** and select a user to edit.
- 2. Clear the Active check box to deactivate the user.
- 3. Click **Save** to save user information and return to the main menu, or click **Close** to discard changes and return to the Main Menu without saving.

Lab Profile

The Lab Profile menu displays the contact information for your lab, network information used by HLA Fusion *Research*, and NMDP contract lab codes. Most of this information is entered during installation, but can be updated at any time. Only supervisors can change the Lab Profile.

From the Lab Profile menu you can:

- Edit the Lab Profile
- Add, edit and remove Lab Codes
- Change the Network Path
- Change the Email Server Name

Editing the Lab Profile

Laboratory information displays on most reports, and includes contact information for your lab. This information is initially entered during installation, and can be edited any time from the Lab Profile menu. Fields marked with an asterisk (*) are required.

- 1. From the main menu, select **Profile > Lab Profile**.
- 2. Edit lab profile information.
- 3. Click **Save** to save changes and return to the main menu, or click **Cancel** to return to the main menu without saving any changes.

Managing Lab Codes

Lab codes are used on NMDP reports to identify contract labs. Multiple lab codes may be entered and stored in HLA Fusion *Research*. You can select the lab code you wish to use when creating an NMDP report. Only the first three digits of a lab Code are used on NMDP reports; lab code descriptions are not included on reports.

- 1. From the main menu, select **Profile > Lab Profile**.
- 2. Add, edit or delete Lab codes:
 - Click Add Lab Code to add a new lab code. Enter information into the new row.

- Highlight a lab code to be edited. Click **Edit Lab Code** to edit the lab code.
- 3. Edit lab code information.
 - Highlight a lab code to be deleted. Click **Delete Lab Code** to delete the lab code.
- 4. Click **Save** to save changes and return to the main menu, or click **Cancel** to discard changes and return to the main menu without saving.

Chapter 11 Utilities

HLA FusionTM *Research* uses a variety of reference files and configurations for data analysis that need to be updated for new products, lots and revisions. You can also change many global product settings to customize analysis for your lab, and you can modify default system settings to reflect your personal or network file system.

Warning: Always use the latest reference files for analysis. Otherwise, analysis results may not be accurate.

Managing Catalog Reference Files

Catalog reference files contain all of the reaction-specific information needed for analysis: bead and well specificities, QC information, cut-off values, bead and primer information, etc. Each new lot or revision of a product needs its own catalog file for analysis results to be accurate.

Updating Catalog Files from a Local or Network Drive

Lab supervisors can input new catalog files for use in analysis when new products, lots, or updates become available. Catalog files are also available on the One Lambda download site (see *Updating Catalog Files from the One Lambda Download Site*, p. 119).

1. From the Main Menu, select Utilities > Update Reference > Update Reference File.

HIA Fusion 2	0	• •		
Import Directory				
🖃 🗏 My Computer				
file directory tre	e			
Catalog C NMDP	C Local Code C	Serology Equive	lent	(`yı
F Catalog C NMDP Catalog Folder	C LocalCode C	Serology Equiva	lent	С ~°уг
Cotolog C NMDP	C Local Eode C	Serology Equiva	ient italog	C ys Auto Update
Cotolog C NMDP Cotolog Felder Last Updere Date: Jan 29, 2010	C Local Code C	Serology Equiva	ilent Italog	C C Sys
Cotolog C NMDP Cotolog Folder Last Update Date: Jan 29, 2010	C Local Code C Select All	Serology Equivo	ilent Italog	C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C
Cotolog C NMDP Cotolog Folder Last Update Date: Jan 29, 2010	C Local Code C Select All	Serology Equivo	ilent ttalog	C C Suppose
Cotolog C NMDP Cotolog Folder Last Updele Date: Jan 29, 2010	C Local Dade C Select All Close	Serology Equiva	dent talog	C C Paral Parad Paral Parad Paral Parad Pa

- 2. Make sure the **Catalog** option is selected.
- 3. Using the file directory tree on the left, locate catalog files to be imported.

ca crite	List of available atalogs, per display _ ria selected below	HLA Fusion* 2.0 Setter Product / Total F SSD 0 Expand to see catalog information
Option	What Displays	
In Fusion Research DB	Catalogs in your current database	
Updates/ Revisions	Catalogs that need to be updated	Show these products: C In Fusion DB C Not in Fusion DB Get Docs Select All Develoct All Import Heb Close C Updates / Revisions C All Catalogs
Not in Fusion Research DB	Available catalogs not yet in current database	
All Catalogs	All available catalogs	Downloads all associated documents, such as worksheets,
		probe/primer sheets & datasheets

Note: To determine which catalog is the most recent available, HLA Fusion Research looks first at the lot number and then the revision number. A updated lot number gets flagged as the most

recent version of a catalog, even if there is also an update to the revision number of the previous lot since you last downloaded catalogs.

- 4. Highlight the files you want to import, or click **Select All** to select all files listed.
- 5. Click **Import** to import the selected catalog files.
- 6. A confirmation dialog box displays import results, click **Close**.
- 7. Click **Close** to return to the Update Reference menu.

Imported catalog files can be used without restarting Fusion Research.

Updating Catalog Files from the One Lambda Download Site

Product catalog files are available on the One Lambda download site (http://download.onelambda.com).

- 1. From the Main Menu, select Utilities > Update Reference > Update Reference File.
- 2. Click Auto Update to open the One Lambda Catalog Updates Selection window.
- 3. Select the check box next to the files you want to import. Click the plus or minus signs on the file directory tree, to locate the catalog files for each product. You can also click **Select All** or **Deselect All** to select or clear all the check boxes at once.
- 4. Click **Import** to import the selected catalog files.
- 5. When the confirmation dialog box displays import results, click **Ok**.
- 6. Click Close and then Yes to return to the Update Reference menu.

Imported catalog files can be used without restarting Fusion Research.

Note: You can also click **Go to OLI**, click the links for the products and catalog files you want to import, and follow the download instructions.

If Auto Update does not respond, verify your network connectivity and that the URL you set for One Lambda in **Utilities > URLs & Paths** is correct.

Updating Molecular Typing Reference Files

Reference files contain allele code and serology equivalent information used in analysis. It is important to update them regularly for accurate allele code and serology assignments.

Utilities

From the Update Reference menu you can

- Update NMDP codes
- Create and update Local codes
- Update Serology Equivalent files

Updating NMDP Codes from a Local or Network Drive

The National Marrow Donor Program (NMDP) provides a list of allele codes that can be used in molecular typing analysis. If you have a current list stored on your local or network drive, use this procedure to import it so HLA Fusion *Research* can access it. The most current NMDP code file is available on the NMDP download site (see *Updating NMDP Files from the NMDP Web Site*, p. 120).

- 1. From the Main Menu, select **Utilities > Update Reference > Update Reference File**.
- 2. Select the **NMDP** option.

	O Update Reference File	×
	HLA Fusion [®] 2.0) 🔵 🔵 🛑 🔵 🔘
	Import Directory	
	1	
	🗉 🚊 My Computer	
	File directory tree	
	C Catalog C Local Code C Sende	gy Equivalent C ConservSys
	Imped NMDP	
Displays date of last	Impo	nt NMDP Auto Update
undato	Last Version Update Date: 5/3/2010 Last Download Date: 5/3/2010	Gio to NMDP
upuate	Close	
	KB43Y	1

- 3. Navigate to the NMDP file on a local or network drive, using the Import Directory tree.
- 4. Click **Import NMDP** to import the selected file.
- 5. Click **Close** to return to the Update Reference menu.

Updating NMDP Files from the NMDP Web Site

Follow this procedure to import the NMDP list from the NMDP web site.

- 1. From the Main Menu, select Utilities > Update Reference > Update Reference File.
- 2. Select the **NMDP** option.
- 3. Click **Auto Update**, which automatically imports the current NMDP file for use with HLA Fusion *Research*. Or, click **Go to NMDP** and follow the instructions for downloading an NMDP file from the website.

Note: If Auto Update does not respond, verify your network connectivity and that the URL you set for NMDP in Utilities > URLs & Paths is correct.

Creating a Local Code File

Local code files are created by individual labs; local codes are created to make ambiguous typing assignments easier to store and read. For example, ambiguities, such as B*1501/1501N/1502, can be condensed with a code to B*15AB for simpler record keeping.

- 1. Copy the local code template from the HLA Fusion Research CD to a local drive.
- 2. Use a text editor to edit the template and add code definitions. Follow the example format, using a **Tab** to separate each field, and a slash to separate multiple values within a field:

letter code <tab> numeric allele extension to which the code applies

- 3. Save the file as local_code.txt
- 4. See the next section, Updating the Local Code File, to import the file.

Updating the Local Code File

After a Local Code file has been created, it must to be updated in HLA Fusion *Research*. To use the codes in analysis, see *Changing Molecular Product Configuration*, p. 129.

1. From the Main Menu, select Utilities > Update Reference > Update Reference File.

💫 Update Reference File		×
HLA Fusion [®] 2.0		
Import Directory		
		1
E S My Computer		
file allocatemy top a		
flie directory tree		
		4
1 Latalog 1 NMDP (* Local Lode 1	C Serology Equivalent Consensiys	
Import Local Code	Innest Local Code	
	Import Local Coue	
Cloze]	
AONE LAMBDA		
Ready		

Utilities

- 2. Select the Local Code option.
- 3. Use the **Import Directory** tree to locate and select the Local code file to be imported.
- 4. Click **Import Local Code** to import the selected file(s).
- 5. Click **Close** to return to the **Update Reference** menu.

Updating Serology Equivalent Code File from the One Lambda Web Site

The Serology Equivalent file can be auto updated from the One Lambda download site (http://download.onelambda.com).

1. From the Main Menu, select Utilities > Update Reference > Update Reference File.

List equiva cr	of available serology lent files, per display iteria selected below	Reference File Manager	1×1
Option	What Displays		
In Fusion Research DB	Files in your current database		
Updates/ Revisions	Files that need to be updated		
Not in Fusion Research DB	Available Files not yet in current database	Show these product: C In Fusion DB C Not in Fusion DB Get Doce Select All Deselect All Import Help Dose C Updates / Revisions C All Serdagy Files	
All Serology Files	All available Serology Files		.4

- 2. Select the **Serology Equivalent** option.
- 3. Click Auto Update to open the One Lambda Catalog Updates Selection window.
- 4. Select the check box next to all files you want to import.
- 5. Click Import to import the selected files. Catalog files are ready for use without restarting HLA Fusion Research.

Utilities

- 6. A confirmation dialog box displays import results, click **Ok**.
- 7. Click **Close** and then **Yes** to return to the Update Reference menu.

Note: If Auto Update does not respond, verify your network connectivity and that the URL you set for Serological in **Utilities > URLs & Paths** is correct.

Archiving Catalog Files

Archive Catalogs

You can archive catalog files that are no longer used. The catalog information still exists in the database, but is not included in the list of available catalog files for analysis. Catalog files can also be restored for use in analysis.

1. From the Main Menu, select Utilities > Update Reference > Archive Catalog.

S Status	CatalogID	CatalogType	LocusType	NOM Date	IMGT	Catalog Notes	UserID	UpdateD ate
	FL1HD_009_01	FlowPRA	Single Class I	(null)			oli	2/12/2010 6.28 PM
	FL1HD_010_00	FlowPRA	Single Class I	(null)			oli	2/12/2010 6:28 PM
	FL1HD_011_00	FlowPRA	Single Class I	(null)			oli	2/12/2010 6:28 PM
	FL1HD_012_00	FlowPRA	Single Class I	(null)			oli	2/12/2010 6:28 PM
	FL1HD01_010_00	FlowPRA	Single Class I	(null)			oli	2/12/2010 6:28 PM
	FL1HD01_011_00	FlowPRA	Single Class I	(null)			oli	2/12/2010 6:28 PM
	FL1HD01_012_00	FlowPRA	Single Class I	(null)			oli	2/12/2010 6:28 PM
	FL1HD010_003_01	FlowPRA	Single Class I	(null)			oli	2/12/2010 6:28 PM
	FL1HD02_010_00	FlowPRA	Single Class I	(null)			oli	2/12/2010 6:28 PM
	FL1HD02_011_00	FlowPRA	Single Class I	(null)			oli	2/12/2010 6:28 PM
	FL1HD02_012_00	FlowPRA	Single Class I	(null)			oli	2/12/2010 6:28 PM
	FL1HD03_010_00	FlowPRA	Single Class I	(null)			oli	2/12/2010 6:28 PM
	FL1HD03_011_00	FlowPRA	Single Class I	(null)			oli	2/15/2010 4:08 PM
A 🗌	FL1HD03_011_01	FlowPRA	Single Class I	(null)			oli	2/12/2010 6:28 Pt
	FL1HD03_012_00	FlowPRA	Single Class I	(null)			oli	2/12/2010 6:28 PM
	FL1HD04_010_00	FlowPRA	Single Class I	(null)			oli	2/12/2010 6:28 PM
	FL1HD04_011_00	FlowPRA	Single Class I	(null)			oli	2/12/2010 6:28 PM
	FL1HD04_012_00	FlowPRA	Single Class I	(null)			oli	2/12/2010 6:28 PM
	FL1HD05_007_01	FlowPRA	Single Class I	(null)			oli	2/12/2010 6:28 PM
	FL1HD05_008_00	FlowPRA	Single Class I	(null)			oli	2/12/2010 6:28 PM
	FL1HD05_009_00	FlowPRA	Single Class I	(null)			oli	2/12/2010 6:28 PM
🗖 A	FL1HD06_007_00	FlowPRA	Single Class I	(null)			oli	2/15/2010 4:08 PM
	FL1HD06_007_01	FlowPRA	Single Class I	(null)			oli	2/12/2010 6:28 PM
	FL1HD06_009_00	FlowPRA	Single Class I	(null)			oli	2/12/2010 6:28 PM
	FL1HD06_010_00	FlowPRA	Single Class I	(null)			oli	2/12/2010 6:28 PM
A 🗌	FL1HD07_007_00	FlowPRA	Single Class I	(null)			oli	2/15/2010 4:08 PM
	FL1HD07_007_01	FlowPRA	Single Class I	(null)			oli	2/12/2010 6:28 PM
A	FL1HD07_008_00	FlowPRA	Single Class I	(null)			oli	2/15/2010 4:08 PM
	FL1HD07_008_01	FlowPRA	Single Class I	(null)			oli	2/12/2010 6:28 PM

- 2. Select the Archive check box for the catalog files you want to archive.
- 3. Click **Save** to save changes and return to the **Update Reference** menu.
- 4. Click **Close** to return to the **Update Reference** menu without saving.

Note: When you import a new version of a catalog file, the system auto-archives the previous version.

Un-Archive Files

Archived catalog files are highlighted in grey when you view the catalog list. The most recently archived catalog files are displayed at the bottom of the list.

		_												
	🔥 Catalog	Manar	gement											×)
	HLA		usion™											
1	S S	Status	CatalogID	CatalogType	LocusType	NDM Date	IMGT	Catalog Note	10		UserID	Up	dateDate	
1	•		FL1HD_009_01	FlowPRA	Single Class I	(null)					oli	2/1	2/2010 6:28 P	м 🗐
			FL1HD_010_00	FlowPRA	Single Class I	(null)					oli	2/1	2/2010 6:28 P	M
			FL1HD_011_00	FlowPRA	Single Class I	(null)					oli	2/1	2/2010 6:28 P	54
			FL1HD_012_00	FlowPRA	Single Class I	(null)					oli	2/1	2/2010 6:28 P	<u>M</u>
			FL1HC01_010_00	FlowPRA	Single Class I	(null)					oli	2/1	2/2010 6:20 P	54
			FL1HC01_011_00	FlowPRA	Single Class I	(null)					oli	2/1	2/2010 6:20 P	<u>M</u>
			FL1HC01_012_00	FlowPRA	Single Class I	(null)					oli	2/1	2/2010 6:20 P	64
			FL1HC010_003_01	FlowPRA	Single Class I	(null)					oli	2/1	2/2010 6:28 P	M
			FL1HD02_010_00	FlowPRA	Single Class I	(null)					oli	2/1	2/2010 6:28 P	54
			FL1HD02_011_00	FlowPRA	Single Class I	(null)					oli	2/1	2/2010 6:28 P	<u>M</u>
			FL1HD02_012_00	FlowPRA	Single Class I	(null)					oli	2/1	2/2010 6:20 P	54
Indicates catalog			FL1HC03_010_00	FlowPRA	Single Class I	(null)					oli	2/1	2/2010 6:20 P	<u>M</u>
indicates catalog		5	FL1HC03_011_00	FlowPRA	Single Class I	(null)					oli	2/1	5/2010 4:00 P	-14
has been arabived			FL1HC03_011_01	FlowPRA	Single Class I	(null)					oli	2/1	2/2010 6:28 P	<u>M</u>
nas been al criiveu			FL1HD03_012_00	FlowPRA	Single Class I	(null)					oli	2/1	2/2010 6:28 P	54
			FL1HD04_010_00	FlowPRA	Single Class I	(null)					oli	2/1	2/2010 6:20 P	<u>M</u>
			FL1HC04_011_00	FlowPRA	Single Class I	(null)					oli	2/1	2/2010 6:20 P	54
			FL1HD04_012_00	FlowPRA	Single Class I	(null)					oli	2/1	2/2010 6:28 P	M
			FL1HD05_007_01	FlowPRA	Single Class I	(null)					oli	2/1	2/2010 6:28 P	54
			FL1HC05_008_00	FlowPRA	Single Class I	(null)					oli	2/1	2/2010 6:28 P	M
1			FL1HC05_009_00	FlowPRA	Single Class I	(null)					oli	2/1	2/2010 6:28 P	54
		6 P	FL1HC06_007_00	FlowPRA	Single Class I	(null)					oli	2/1	5/2010 4:00 P	54
			FL1HC06_007_01	FlowPRA	Single Class I	(null)					oli	2/1	2/2010 6:20 P	-14
			FL1HC06_009_00	FlowPRA	Single Class I	(null)					oli	2/1	2/2010 6:28 P	M
			FL1HC06_010_00	FlowPRA	Single Class I	(null)					oli	2/1	2/2010 6:28 P	54
		6 T	FE1HD07_007_00	FlowPRIA	Single Class I	(null)					08	2/1	5/2010 4:00 P	94
Select check box to			FL1HD07_007_01	FlowPRA	Single Class I	(null)					oli	2/1	2/2010 6:20 P	54
		1	FL1HC07_008_00	FlowPRA	Single Class I	(null)					oli	2/1	5/2010 4:00 P	54
display archived			EL1HD07_008_01	FlowPRA	Single Class I	(nul)					oli	2/1	2/2010 6:28 P	м 🗉
	R Show	Archi	wed Catalogs						Report	Archive	Unarchive	Delete		ose
catalogs	AON	ELAN	IBDA, INC.											

• From the **Archive Catalog** window, clear the **Archive** check boxes for catalog files you want to restore to active use, and click **Save**.

Viewing Catalog File Information

You can view information about a catalog file and generate a report from the **Catalog Information** menu. Catalog files displayed with a shaded line have been archived.

- 1. From the Main Menu, select Utilities > Update Reference > Catalog Information.
- 2. Click a column header if you want to sort the catalog file list.
- 3. Click **Report** to display a printable, exportable report of the currently displayed catalog information.
- 4. Click **Close** to return to the Update Reference menu.

Associating Product Catalog Files and Luminex Templates

You can associate a catalog file with the Luminex template name used for a specific product. HLA Fusion *Research* automatically associates catalog ID and template names the first time you run the analysis for the product. After an association has been made, HLA Fusion *Research* automatically selects the catalog file associated with the template used in the CSV file when you start analysis. You can also manually add, remove, or change associations.

Utilities

- 1. From the Main Menu, select **Utilities > Catalog Template Association**.
- 2. Add, remove or modify an association:
 - a. Add a New Association

- Select a catalog file.
- Type in a new template name, or click **Browse** to select a Luminex template file (.lxt format) to associate with the filename.
- b. Remove an Association
 - Select a catalog file.
 - Select a template name and click **Remove**.
- c. Modify an Association
 - Select a catalog file.
 - Edit existing template name(s).
- 3. Click **Save** to save changes.
- 4. Click **Close** to return to the Main Menu

Importing Allele Frequency Files (Demographic Frequency)

You can import allele frequency files to use in analysis based on demographics.

1. From the Main Menu, select **Utilities > Update Reference Allele Frequency**.

reate and Up	-USION "" odate Demographic/Alle	e Frequency					
Create De emographic I	emographic Group C	Update Alleles and HLA Fusion\QA -	Frequency	est Referenc	:e Files\Serology an	Imp	ort
Sele	ct Name		Alele/Sero	Japan	Caucasian		
	Japan		A*0101	0.2	0.1		1
Ē	Caucasian		A*010101	0.2	0.02		
			A*01010101	0.2	0.003		
			A*0201	10.9	2		
			A*02010101	10.9	56		
			A*020106	0.01	3		
			A*020107	0.01	4		
			A*020110	0.01	4		
			A*020301	0.02	0.02		
emographic	Group and Frequency in	Database					
Active	Name			Allele	/Sero	Frequency	-
9	African			A'010	1	0.4	
9	Australian			A*010	101	0.002	-
M	Caucasian			A'010	10101	0.3	4
M I	Chinese			A'020	1	7.1	
	Cwb_Jan_2009_all			A*020	10101	5.5	
	Dutch			A'020	106	1	
2	Erench			A'020	107	0.9	
R	German			A*020	110	0.02	
	Korean			A'020	301	0.1	
P							_

Utilities

Figure 11-1: Allele Frequency Import

- 2. Select the **Create Demographic Group** option.
- 3. Click the browse _ button and locate Allele Frequency files.

4. Click Import.

When an Allele Frequency file is successfully imported, the groups it contains are listed in **Demographic Group and Frequency in Database**.

5. Click Save.

Note: If the header for the column of any allele frequency file you import is empty, the entire column is not imported into Fusion Research, regardless of any other data it contains. If columns are duplicated, Fusion Research gives you an error message and does not import the allele frequency file.

The data contained in the Allele Frequency file look similar to Figure 11-2.

			6	
4	A	В	C	D
1	Official Name	Japan	Caucasian	0112
2	A*0101	0.2	0.1	0.2
3	A*010101	0.2	0.02	0.2
4	A*01010101	0.2	0.003	0.2
5	A*0201	10.9	2	
6	A*02010101	10.9	56	
/	A*020106	0.01	3	
8	A*020107	0.01	4	
9	A*020110	0.01	4	
10	A*020301	0.02	0.02	
11	A*020302	0.01	0.01	
12	A*020601	10.4	10.4	
13	A*020602	0.01		
14	A*0207	3.4	3.4	
15	A*0210	0.1	0.1	
16	A*0215N	0.01		
17	A*0218	0.02	0.02	
18	A*0228	0.02	0.02	
19	A*0242	0.01		
20	A*0251	0.01	0.01	
21	A*0253N	0.01	0.01	
22	A*0259	0.01		
23	A*0270	0.01	0.01	
24	A*0271	0.01	0.01	
25	A*0272	0.01		
26	A*0301	0.8	0.8	
27	A*03010101	0.8	0.8	
28	A*0302	0.02	0.02	
29	A*1101	8.1	8.1	
30	A*110101	8.1		
31	A*1102	0.1		
32	A*110201	0.1	0.1	0.1
33	A*24020101	35.6	35.6	35.6
34	A*24021	35.6	35.6	35.6
35	A*2404	0.02	0.02	0.02
36	A*2408	0.02	0.02	0.02
37	A*2420	0.02	0.02	0.02
38	A*2425	0.01	0.01	0.01
39	A*2443	0.01	0.01	
40	A*2601	9.8	9.8	
41	A*260101	9.8	9.8	
42	A*2602	2.2	2.2	
43	A*2603	2.1	2.1	
44	A*2604	0.01		
45	A*2605	0.02		
46	A*2606	0.02		
47	A*2611N	0.01		

Figure 11-2: Example Allele Frequency File Data

Updating Allele Frequency Files (Demographic Frequency)

You can modify allele frequency files before using them in analysis based on demographics.

Utilities

1. From the Main Menu, select **Utilities > Update Reference Allele Frequency**.

-	and I in	date Demographic /Alleli	Findunder				
Create	- and op	age of children and	o i roquonoy				
C Da	reale De	mographic Group 🧵 I	Update Alleles and Freque	ency	Skip First Row	Allele Column 1	÷.
					,		
Jpdate	ed Allele	s Source File :				Upda	ste
Alleles	not in th	e database for selected	demographic group:				
Democ	Tachic (Sroup and Frequency in	Database				
Demoş	graphic (Stoup and Frequency in	Database		Allele/Sero	Frequency	
Demos	araphic (Active	Stoup and Frequency in Name Albanjarre	Detabase	-	Allele/Sero	Frequency 0.4	
Demos	graphic I Active	Group and Frequency in Name Abrighte Alfrican	Database	Î	Allelo/Sero A'0101 A'0101	Frequency 0.4 0.002	
Demos	graphic I Active	Group and Frequency in Nome Aborgine Atrican Austrolian	Database	-	Aldo/Sero A'0101 A'010101 A'010101	Frequency 0.4 0.002 0.3	
Demos	prephic (Active V V	Group and Frequency in Nome Abrogine Adrican Austrolian Caucasian	Database		Altele/Seco A'0101 A'010101 A'0101011 A'000101	Frequency 0.4 0.002 0.3 7.1	
Demos	araphic I Active V V V	Group and Frequency in Nonn Adorgene Adrican Austration Caucasian Chinese	Dørabase		Atolo/Seto A'0101 A'010101 A'010101 A'02010 A'02010	Frequency 0.4 0.002 0.3 7.1 5.5	
Demos	graphic I Active V V V V V V	Gloup and Frequency in Nome Aburgine Attican Autosian Caucasian Chinese OwD_an_2009_al	Detabase		Alide/Sero A'0101 A'010101 A'020101 A'0201011 A'0201011 A'02010101 A'02010101	Frequency 0.4 0.002 0.3 7.1 5.5 1	
Demoç	graphic I Active V V V V V V	Stoup and Frequency in Name Adorgene Adircan Austration Chirese OWD_4an_2009_al OWD_4an_2009_al	Døtøbase		Alido/Seeo A'0101 A'010101 A'01010101 A'01010101 A'02010101 A'02010101 A'02010101 A'02010101	Frequency 0.4 0.002 0.3 7.1 5.5 1 0.0	
Demos	graphic I Active 모 모 모 모 모 모 모 모 모 모 모 모 모 모 모 모 모 모 모	Group and Frequency in Nome Aborgine Autorian Caucasian Chinese DVM_Jan_2009_al CVWD_Jan_2009_US Duch	Database		Allele/Seeo Ar0101 Ar00101 Ar00101 Ar00101 Ar00101 Ar00101 Ar00105 Ar00107	Frequency 0.4 0.002 0.3 7.1 5.5 1 1 0.9	
Demoş	graphic I Active V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V	Circup and Frequency in Nome Abigane Abigane Caucasian Caucasian Chinese Own_Jan_2008_al CvVD_Jan_2008_US Duch French	Databara		Alite/Seno A'0101 A'010101 A'0101011 A'0201 A'020101 A'020101 A'020107 A'020107 A'020107	Frequency 0.4 0.002 0.3 7.1 5.5 1 1 0.9 0.02	
Demo;	graphic I Active V V V V V V V V V V V V V	Stoup and Frequency in Name Altican Altican Chinete Chinete DVD_Jan_2005_al DVDCh French German	Døløbase ————		Alide/Seeo Av010 Av0101 Av010101 Av020101 Av020101 Av020106 Av020100 Av020100 Av020100 Av020100 Av020100	Frequency 0.4 0.002 0.3 7.1 5.5 1 0.9 0.02 0.1	

Utilities

Figure 11-3: Allele Frequency Import

- 2. Select the **Update Alleles and Frequencies** option.
- 3. Click the browse 🔄 button and locate the Allele Frequency file you want to update.
- 4. Double-click on the file, or click **Open** in the browser window.
- 5. Do any or all of the following to modify the file:
 - Add/delete alleles
 - Delete existing demographics
 - Change the allele frequencies
 - Convert allele format (click **Translate Alleles**)
- 6. Click Update.
- 7. Click Close.

Changing Product Configuration Settings

Changes to product analysis settings apply only to samples not previously analyzed. Previously analyzed samples must be re-analyzed for the changes to be applied.

From the Product Configuration menu you can

- Change Micro SSP product configuration
- Change Ab1 file name configuration

Changing Molecular Product Configuration

Changes Micro SSP analysis settings apply only to samples that have not yet been saved or confirmed. To change analysis settings for previously saved or confirmed samples, you must change the settings from the product analysis window and re-analyze the sample.

- 1. From the Main Menu, select Utilities > Molecular Product Configuration > Molecular Analysis Configuration.
- 2. Select **Micro SSP** from the Product Type drop-down menu.

AicroSSP Analysis Con	figuration			×
Product Type: MicroS	SP	~		
Code © NMDP © No Code © Local Code				
Enable Cross Code				
Demographic	[none] Jashon	- Rens	U Para I	
Reset	to OLI Save	Close		

- 3. Change configuration values as needed.
 - Allow Auto-Accept All can only be selected by someone with Supervisor user privileges, and allows you to select a button on LABType session summary to accept the batch analysis results for all samples.

Utilities

• **Computer Assigned Serology** can only be selected by someone with Supervisor user privileges, and automatically populates Micro SSP analysis serology assignment fields. If this is selected, the following warning message is displayed as a reminder that the assignments are estimates, and should not be accepted without verification:



- 4. Click **Save** to save changes.
- 5. Click Close to return to the Update Reference menu.

Changing Ab1 Filename Configuration

You can modify the way Ab1 filenames are configured.

1. From the Main Menu, select **Utilities > Molecular Ab1 Filename Configuration**.

Η	LA F	usion	ТМ				
_A	b1 Filename Fo	ormat					
	Sample	Locus	Pri	mer 💌 🔤	Well 💌 🔄	Other 💌	Default
	Example: San	nple_B_2F_A01	_Other				
	ocus Name Fo	rmat					
	A	В	Cw	DRB1	DRB345	KIR	Default
	A	В	Cw	DRB1	DRB345	KIR	
	DPB1	DPA1	DQB1	DQA1	MICA	MICB	
	DPB1	DPA1	DQB1	DQA1	MICA	MICB	
			S	ave C	lose		

Utilities

- 2. Make the format changes you want, and click **Save**.
- 3. Click **Close** to return the the HLA Fusion Research home page.

General System Settings

Several HLA Fusion Research system settings can be set through this menu option under Utilities.

General Settings

For enabling certain system options, use this tab on the Fusion Settings window.

1. Select **Utilities > General Settings.** The **Fusion Setup** dialog box is displayed.

💫 Fusion Setup	
HLA Fusion 2.0	
General Setting Printer Setup URLs Paths Enable Audit Trail Logging Enable Auto Download of Reference Files Default Patient/Donor Type: Patient Default Patient/Donor Type: Patient Image: Close	

- 2. Select check boxes and from the drop down menu as desired to modify the current Fusion Research settings.
- 3. Click Save and then Close to save your changes and exit to the main Fusion Research application.

Choosing Default Printer Settings

You can set printer defaults for printing HLA Fusion *Research* screens or reports—whether you want to select a printer and settings each time you print, or whether you want screens or reports to be automatically sent to the specified printer with the specified settings.

1. Select Utilities > General Settings and select the Printer Setup tab. The Printer Setup dialog box is displayed.

Print Screen	-	
Show print previe	ew dialog 🧿 Yes 🤇 No	
Default printer	Select one	•
Paper size	Select one	•
Print Report Show print repor	tdialog í Yes C No	
Print Report Show print repor Default printer	tdialog	
Print Report Show print repor Default printer Paper size	t dialog	

- 2. Select from the following options for both the **Print Screen** and **Print Report** panels of the dialog box:
 - If you want to select a printer and have the option of setting other printer settings each time you print, make sure the **Yes** option is selected.
 - If you do not want to select a printer each time you print, select **No**, and select the default printer and paper size from the drop-down menus.

Note: This default printer configuration may be overwritten by the specific page properties of certain reports.

Setting HLA Fusion Research Default URLs and Directory Paths

The **URLs & Paths** option under the Utilities menu allows you to set the default URLs for OLI and NMDP web sites to download reference and catalog files, and product updates. This option also allows you to set the directory path where HLA Fusion *Research*, by default, stores catalogs, session/batch files, reports, etc. Modifying URLs or paths ahead of time allows you to avoid having to browse for files each time you need them.

1. From the Main Menu, select Utilities > General Settings and select the URLs or the Paths tab.

HLA Fusion Website	l canal		
ittp://www.OneLambda.com			
One Lambda, Inc., Catalog Files UF	1L		
ntp://download.onelambda.com/pu	b/tray_info/Windows/HLA_Fus	ion_Catalogs/	-
One Lambda, Inc., Web Services U	IRL		
ttp://inquityform.onelambda.com/c	aj_wsvc/labdata.asmx		
One Lambda, Inc., Serological URL			
http://download.onelambda.com/p	ub/tray_info/Windows/HLA_Fu:	ion_Catalogs/	-
NMDP URL			
http://bioinformatics.nmdp.org/HLA	/Allele_Codes/Allele_Code_List	:/Numerical_Order/index.html	1
NMDP Download URL			
http://bioinformatics.nmdp.org/HLA	/numeric.html		
		Save	Close

meral Setting Printer Setup URLs Patht	
Catalog	1
c VLL Fusion Vd/Wa/catalog	شا ل
Sessions/Balch	
C VILI Fusion/data/settion	<u>م</u> ا ل
Reports	
c:\OLI Fusion\data\report	
Interface -	
c:\DLI Fusion\dsta\esport	-
Temp	
c:\DLI Fusion\data\temp	
Bun Res	
	Save

- 2. Click the **URLs** or the **Paths** tab.
- 3. Enter a URL and verify it works by clicking ____.For paths, use the browse button _____ to locate the directory you want to use for the specified purpose.

Utilities

4. Click Save.

Activating Products

The Products Selection option on the Utilities menu allows you to activate or de-activate the various OLI analysis products that may be used with HLA Fusion *Research*.

1. From the Main Menu, select **Utilities > Products Selection**.



- 2. Select or clear the check box next to the product(s) you wish to activate or de-activate.
- 3. Click Ok.

Software Validation

The HLA Fusion *Research* software has functionality to help with the validation process required by Labs, Clinics, and hospitals seeking to comply with GCP, GLP and GMP. Validation of the HLA Fusion *Research* software for your lab environment for regulatory or performance reasons, can be automated by using the **IQ** (Installation Qualification) and **OQ** (Operational Qualification) options from the **Utilities > Validation** menu. Your lab may choose to run these as a standard regulatory validation process, to help troubleshoot issues, or to provide information to prepare for a software upgrade.

IQ (Installation Qualification)

The IQ process assists you with installation qualification of HLA Fusion *Research* software by providing a built-in function. Once the Installation qualification completes, a results report is generated, which you can save, print or export to Excel.

Note: If your IQ results concern you, export them to an Excel file and e-mail the file to OLI customer support (see *Technical Support*, p. 3).

1. From the Main Menu, select **Utilities > Validation > IQ**. The validation test runs. When it is complete, a report is displayed, with the following categories of data:

Utilities

- Systems Information (e.g., operating system)
- Environment (e.g., directory path where the HLA Fusion *Research* program files are stored)
- URLs (e.g., the URL for the catalog download site)
- Database Information (e.g., name of the database)
- Number and types of files installed (e.g., dll)
- Lab Information (e.g., name and address of your lab)
- Analysis Configuration for each product (e.g., low bead count for LABType)
- 2. Choose to save the report, preview it, print it, or export it to Excel.

IQ Type 5	r	
Installation Qualification (IQ) Summary		
Description	Value	Status V
Performed By	One Lambda Inc.	
Performed on	Thursday, March 27, 2008 1:37 PM	
Number of tests performed	146	
Passed	146	
Failed	0	
N/A	0	
IQ Type 1	7	
Systems Information		
Description	Value	Status V
Operating System	Windows XP	
Service Pack	Service Pack 2	
Region	United States	
Language	English (United States)	
IQ Type T	7	
Environment		
Description	Value	Status 🗸
Program Path	C:\Program Files\One Lambda\HLAFusion\VD	Passed
Configuration Files	C:\Program Files\One Lambda\HLAFusion\VD	Passed
Catalog Files	c:VOLI Fusion/data/catalog	Passed
Session/Batch	c:VOLI Fusion/data/session	Passed
Reports	c:/OU Fusion/data/report	Passed
Interface (Import/Export) Files	c:YOLI Fusion/data/export	Passed
Temp Files	c:\OLI Fusion/data/temp	Passed
IQ Type 5		
URLs		
Description	Value	Status ¥
OLI Catalog URL	http://download.onelambda.com/pub/tray_info/Windows/HLAVisual/	Passed

Example page from an IQ report

Special Characters to Avoid in Filenames

Some file formats that HLA Fusion Research imports use special characters as field separators. Therefore, it is recommended that you not use the following special characters when you name sessions or other files within Fusion Research.

Character	Name
1	comma
;	semi-colon
:	colon
	period
/	slash
١	backslash
?	question mark
%	percent sign
*	asterisk
	vertical bar
Ш	double-quotation mark

Utilities
1	single-quotation mark or apostrophe
<	less than
>	greater than

Chapter 12 LABXpress

This chapter describes how to create sample worklists, plate designs and custom runs for the LABXpress system.

Note: *Only* use these procedures if you have acces to and plan to use the LABXpress system (including pipetting machine) for automated sample processing.

You should make sure you also have access to and have reviewed the LABXpressTM User Manual.

Managing Sample Information

Sample management in HLA Fusion *Research* software allows you to manage sample information before adding samples to a sample worklist. Sample information can exist in the database without any analysis data associated with it.

1. Select LABXpress > Sample > Sample Manager

Use Fi	ilter to Search for	Sample Information								
Sear	ch Criteria									
	Sample ID	Local	DCN	Category	TurnAround	Date		Location	Sample	ist
*		•	* 🗸	* *	*	2/14/2008	: 💌 *	*	*	*
View	/Edit Sample Inf	ormation								
	SampleID	Local ID	DCN	Category	TurnAround	Date	Location	Patient ID		
*										
*										

2. Use the filters to find samples, and click **View Sample**.

Note:	It is not recommended that you search by Sample ID—this may lead to a lengthy search, especially with
	larger databases.

- 3. Edit sample information.
- 4. Click **Save Changes** to save the sample information.
- 5. Click **Close** to return to the Fusion *Research* main menu.

Managing Test Lists

A Test List is a list of Sample IDs that can be used repeatedly to automatically write the sample IDs into a session analysis that can be read by the Luminex[®]system. It is a useful tool when you have a group of samples to be run on multiple tests.

From the Test List menu you can:

- Create new Test Lists
- View and edit existing Test Lists
- Delete Test Lists
- Export Test Lists to a .txt file

Creating New Test Lists

Test Lists must be created in the order in which the samples are to be analyzed.

1. From the main HLA Fusion *Research* menu, select **Sample > Manage Test List**.

Create/Edit Test List												
Select Test List Or	1			Cantinua 22	Dalata List	1000						
Enter new Test List Name			-	Condinue >>	Delete List	ose						
Enter Sample Name												
	OR											
Search Field									Test List Na			
Sample ID	*		Apply									
Sample Name	Local ID	Patient ID										
								Add >>				Marco Un
								Add				nove op
								Remove				Move Down
								Remove All				
									Save	Export	Refresh	

- 2. Type in a name for the new test list, and click **Continue**>>.
- 3. Search for samples to add to the test list using the search fields, and click Apply to view search results.
- 4. Highlight samples, and click Add>> to add them to the test list.
- 5. Click **Save** to save the new test list.
- 6. Click **Close** to return to the Main Menu.

Viewing and Editing Existing Test Lists

Test Lists can be viewed or edited at any time.

- 1. From the main HLA Fusion *Research* menu, select **Sample > Manage Test List**.
- 2. Use the drop-down list to select a test list, and click Continue>>.
- 3. Click **Delete List** to permanently delete the selected test list.
- 4. Click **Close** to return to the Main Menu.

Version 2.0

Deleting Existing Test Lists

Deleting a test list removes the list from the database, but the sample IDs are not removed or changed in the database.

- 1. From the main HLA Fusion *Research* menu, select **Sample > Manage Test List**.
- 2. Use the pull-down menu to select a test list, and click Continue>>.
- 3. Add, remove or move samples as desired.
- 4. Click **Save** to save the new test list.
- 5. Click **Close** to return to the Main Menu.

Exporting Test Lists

Test lists can be exported as .txt files for use outside of HLA Fusion.

- 1. From the main HLA Fusion *Research* menu, select **Sample > Manage Test List**.
- 2. Use the pull-down menu to select a test list, and click **Continue>>**.
- 3. Click **Export** to export test list details to a .txt file.
- 4. If prompted to save the test list before export, click **Yes** to save and continue.
- 5. Select a location to save the test list and enter a file name for it.
- 6. Click Save.
- 7. When prompted to create a Luminex Patient List input, click No.
- 8. Click **Close** to close and return to the Main Menu.

Creating Luminex Lists

HLA Fusion can create a Luminex List from a new or existing test list. You can use this list to quickly add information, such as sample ID, before you create a Luminex CSV output file. From the **Create/Edit Test List** window, you can create a Luminex list

Luminex List files can be edited after they are exported, but changes are not reflected in the test list from which they were created.

- 1. From the main HLA Fusion *Research* menu, select **Sample > Manage Test List**.
- 2. Use the pull-down menu to select a test list, and click Continue>>.
- 3. Click **Export** to export.
- 4. Select a location to save the test list to and enter a file name.
- 5. Click Save.
- 6. When prompted to create Luminex List input, click Yes.
- 7. Click **OK** on the confirmation message to return to the **Test List** window.
- 8. Click **Close** to return to the Main Menu.

Creating Sample Worklists

Note: The Sample Worklist feature is available *only* if you have SQL 2005 and above installed.

Sample Worklist functionality in HLA Fusion *Research* software gives you the flexibility to assign various tests to selected samples. This information is used in designing plates for Luminex processing.

Sample Worklist Search by sample Search by test list Sample ID Local ID From: To: Location Sample ID Local ID From: To: Location To: Lo	Clear Filter Search
SampleID LocalD Date Location *	LABType Tests LABScreen Tests A B C DRB1 BW4 B7 DQA DQB DQA/DQB DP DRB345 AHD B+HD C+HD DRB1+HD Save

- 1. Select **Sample > Sample Worklist** from the HLA Fusion *Research* main menu.
- 1. Use the search criteria to specify the samples that you would like to assign tests to, and click Search.
- 2. Select one sample, or select multiple samples (by holding and dragging the mouse). The selected samples are highlighted.
- 3. Now assign one or more tests by selecting the check boxes for the tests you want to run on the samples (listed under LABScreen Tests and/or LABType Tests).
- 4. Once you are done assigning tests to all the selected samples, click Save to save the worklist.

Creating a Plate Design

Note: The Plate Designer feature is available *only* if you have SQL 2005 and above installed.

Plate Designer functionality in HLA Fusion *Research* software gives you the flexibility to organize and plan your samples in a plate format that is ready for processing through the Luminex system. You must first create a sample worklist (see *Creating Sample Worklists*, p. 142).

Assay type: LABScreen New Plate Edit Plate Go	Plate Name: TestPlate1 Search for samples to be assigned with test Test name: Sample ID LS Single I	s Test From: 4/19/2	assigned between To: 009 V 5/19/2009 V	Search
1 2 3 4 5	6 7 8 9 10 11 12	ו	SampleID	Date 🔺
			1107	5/19/2009 4:40 PM
			2	5/19/2009 4:40 PM
			3	5/19/2009 4:40 PM
		<<	324	5/19/2009 4:40 PM
			5	5/13/2009 4:40 PM
		>>	3	5/19/2009 4:40 PM
			7	5/19/2009 4:40 PM
			8	5/19/2009 4:40 PM
			9068	5/19/2009 4:40 PM
			A*0108	5/19/2009 4:40 PM
		J	A*2603	5/19/2009 4:40 PM
			AP630	5/19/2009 4:40 PM
			ARA	5/19/2009 4:40 PM
			вск	5/19/2009 4:40 PM
sts assigned: LSM; PRA II;	LS SA I; LS Single I;		biydbd	5/19/2009 /-/0 PM

- 1. Select LABXpress > Plate Designer from the main HLA Fusion *Research* menu.
- 2. Select the Assay type.
- 3. Select the **New Plate** button option if you want to create a new plate; otherwise, select **Edit Plate** to change an existing plate.
- 4. Click Go.
- 5. For a new plate:
 - Enter a unique plate name
 - Use the following search criteria to search and select the samples you want to add to plate for testing:
 - Test name

- Sample name
- Sample collection date (From and To date)

To edit a plate, modify the data in the fields listed above.

- 6. Click **Search** to display a list of samples that match your criteria.
- 7. Select samples (one or many at a time), and use the left << button to assign these samples to a well in the plate. Repeat this until you have completed your plate design.
- 8. Click **Save** to save your plate design.
- 9. Click **Print** if you want to print your plate design.

Creating a Run Design

If you have not yet created a plate design, see Creating a Plate Design, p. 143.

- 1. Select **LABXpress > Run Designer** from the main HLA Fusion *Research* menu.
- 2. Select the **Run Assay Type**.
- 3. Select the **New Run** button option if you want to create a new plate; otherwise, select **Edit Run** to change an existing run.
- 4. Click Go.
- 5. For a new run:
 - Enter a unique run name
 - Use the following search criteria to search and select the samples you want to add to plate for testing:
 - Plate design name
 - Plate design creation date (From and To date)

To edit a run, modify the data in the fields listed above.

- 6. Click **Search** to display a list of plate designs that match your search criteria.
- 7. Select the check boxes in the IsUsed column for each plate design you want to include, and click the assign button
 v to add all the selected designs to the run.

Note: You can select a maximum of 8 plate designs per run design.

💫 LABXpress														
Sample Plate De	esigner R	un Designe	r Run M	Ionitor	Setting	s								
HLA Fu	sion	тм												
Run Designer Run Assay Type: LABScreen Run Name: R1 Search for designed plates Ruh avec						Plate last editer	2 1 o	n Ta:						
New Run Edit Run	Go	×					8/ 1/200	9	▼ 9.	/ 1/200	9 💌	Search		
PlateName	Date	LSM	PRA I	PRA II	PRA	+	LS SA I	L	S SA II	LS Sin	gle I	LS Single II	-	
jhojkhiopj	9/1/2009	13	0	0	0		0	0		0		0		
LABSCREEN 1	8/28/2009	22	0	0	0		0	0		0		56		
LABSCREEN 2	8/28/2009	95	0	0	0		0	0		0		0		
LABSCREEN LSM	8/28/2009	24	27	0	29		0	0		0		0		
NP1	9/1/2009	1	0	0	0		0	0		0		0		
NP2	9/1/2009	22	29	25	0		0	0		0		0		
Run Summary Vo	l Calculation]	Bead E	Ireakup				١	Wash Buffer I	Breakup				
			TestNa	me	Tests	Vol	BeadVial	Π	PlateName		Tests	WashVol		
	Galtt Ta	1-13/-1	LSM		81	405	1		jhojkhiopj		13	14155		
			LS Sing	ell	56	280	1		LABSCREE	N 1	78	74930		
Wash Buffer:	4 23	38945	PBA I		56	280	1		LABSCREE	N LSM	80	76800		
PBS:	1 2	0025	PRA I+I		29	145	1		NP2		76	73060		
IGG:	1 2	7435	PRA II		25	125	1							
Total Tests:	247								R	eport] [Save	Close	

The bottom portion of the screen displays the resources and volumes required to make this run on LABXpress.

To remove a plate from the Run, select the check box in the **IsExists** column for that plate, and click the Remove button \mathbf{x} .

8. When you complete the run design, click **Save**.

Determining the Run Type

The following table lists the types of LABXpress runs you can select for each assay:

Run Type	Definition
LABScreen Plate Driven Custom	You select a run from the <i>plate-based</i> run designs you have created for this assay type in HLA Fusion <i>Research</i> LABXpress Run Designer (see <i>Creating a Plate Design</i> , p. 143).
LABScreen Plate Driven Express	You create a run on the fly, using pre configured plates. This requires you to supply a barcode for each plate you include.

Run Type	Definition
LABScreen Sample Driven Custom	You select a run from the <i>sample-based</i> run designs you have created for this assay type in HLA Fusion <i>Research</i> LABXpress Run Designer (see <i>Creating a Plate Design</i> , p. 143).
LABScreen Sample Driven Express	You create a sample-based run on the fly, using pre configured plates. This requires you to supply a barcode for each plate you include.
LABType Plate Driven Custom	You select a run from the <i>plate-based</i> run designs you have created for this assay type in HLA Fusion <i>Research</i> LABXpress Run Designer (see <i>Creating a Plate Design</i> , p. 143).
LABType Plate Driven Express	You create a run on the fly, using pre configured plates. This requires you to supply a barcode for each plate you include.

Starting and Monitoring a Run

For step-by-step instructions on starting and monitoring a run through LABXpress to process samples automatically, refer to the *LABXpressTM User Manual*.

Index

Α

Activation products to interface with Fusion 134 Analyze data menu 13

В

By date grouping of Navigator results 12, 13 By product grouping of Navigator results 11

С

Catalog reference files, managing 117 archiving 123 associating with Luminex templates 124 update form local drive or network 117 update from OLI Web site 119 viewing information 124 Changing product configuration settings 129 LABType and Micro SSP 129 ConsenSys SBT 25 Customer support 2

D

Data menu 14 Default printer options, setting 131 Defaults for URL and directory paths 132 Displaying the Navigator tool 10, 11, 12, 13 by date 12, 13 by product 11

Ε

Exit menu 16

F

Features of the software 1 Find button 17 Forgetting your Fusion password 6

G

Grouping results by date 12, 13 Grouping results by product 11

н

Help menu 15 HLA Fusion features 1 Home pages 9 key system settings 6 main menu options 13 navigating the user interface 5, 13 program updates 1 software updates 1 toolbar buttons 16 Home button 22 Home pages 9

Installation qualification 135

L

Launching the Navigator tool 10 Limitations of the software program 2

Μ

Magnify button 19 Main menu options 13 analyze data 13 data 14 exit 16 help 15 patient info 14 profile 14 reports 14 samples 14

utilities 15

Managing catalog reference files 117 archiving 123 associating with Luminex templates 124 update form local drive or netwrok 117 update from OLI Web site 119 viewing information 124 Molecular typing files, updating 119 allele frequency 125, 127 local code files 121 NMDP codes 120

Ν

Navigating the user interface 5, 13 Navigator tool displaying 10 grouping results 11 by date 12, 13 by product 11 launching 10 results grouping 11 by date 12, 13 by product 11 Navigator tree 10 NMDP Cross codes 51

0

One Lambda technical support 2 Operational qualification 135

Ρ

Password, forgetting 6 Patient button 20 Patient Info menu 14 Preview Report button 18 Print Report button 18 Print Screen button 19 Printer options, setting up defaults 131 Product configuration settings, changing 129 LABType and Micro SSP 129 Product Data Import button 23 Products, activating 134 Profile menu 14 Program updates 1

R

Related Records button 21, 23

Reporting software problems 2 Reports menu 14 Results grouping in the Navigator tool 11 by date 12, 13 by product 11

S

Samples menu 14 Select CSV Files window 35 Show Navigator button 20 Software features 1 Software limitations 2 Software problems, reporting 2 Software updates 1 Software validation 135 System settings 6 character length 8 file permissions 7 screen resolution 6

Т

Technical support 2 Toolbar buttons 16 Find 17 Magnify 19 Patient 20 Preview Report 18 Print Report 18 Print Screen 19 Product Data Import 23 Related Records 21 Sample Drop Down 23 Show Navigator 20 Side By Side Analysis 22

U

Updating molecular typing files 119 allele frequency 125, 127 local code files 121 NMDP codes 120 URL and directory paths, setting 132 User interface, navigating 5, 13 Using the Navigator tree 10 Utilities menu 15

۷

Validating software 135